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1. General Information

Name of the company Eastern Commercial Leasing Public Company Limited

Address 976/1 Soi Praram 9 Hospital, Rimklongsamsen Road,
Bangkapi Sub-District, Huay Kwang District, Bangkok 10310
Telephone 0-2641-5252
Facimile  0-2641-5994, 0-2641-5995

Homepage http://www.ecl.co.th

Type of Business Automobile hire purchase finance

Company Registration Number Registration Number 0107546000288

Type and Number of Share Common share 410 million shares Par value Baht 1 per share
Registered capital Baht 410 million

Cholburi Branch address 728/10 Sukhumvit Road, Bangplasoi Sub-District,

Muang District, Cholburi Province
Telephone 038-278889, 038-278676-7
Facimile ~ 038-278669

Reference Information

Share Registrar Thailand Securities Depository Company Limited

Address 62 Securities Exchange of Thailand Building Floor 4 ,6 - 7
Ratchadapsek Road, Klongtoey Sub-District,
Klongtoey District Bangkok 10110
Telephone 0-2229-2800
Facimile ~ 0-2359-1259-63

Brach Office 2/7 Mue 4 Noth Park Estate, Vipawadirangsit Road,
Tung Song Hong Sub-District, Laksi District, Bangkok 10210
Telephone  0-2596-9000

External Aucitor Mrs. Suvimol Krittayakiern
Certified Public Accountant 2982
or Miss Somjintana Pholhiranrat
Certified Public Accountant 5599
Telephone 0-2259-5300-2
Facimile  0-2260-1553, 0-2259-8956
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Message from the Chairman
Members of the Shareholders

During the year 2007, the Thai economy grew within a narrow range because of impact from a number of
factors for example the rising oil price, the instability situation in the South, and the unclear political situation, all
resulted in the economic growth at a slower pace. It is essential that the Company develops its business strength to
enable it to grow continuously on a sustainable basis, to be competitive, to have quality staff, and most importantly to
maintain good corporate governance, with due announcement and preparation of procedure manual so staff at all levels
adhere to business ethics, standard, and good ethical conduct in the fulfillment of their duties for the best interest of

the shareholders.

For the year 2008, ECL has policy to expand into new service products such as car rental service. ECL
emphasizes services and provides operational training for staff. ECL is confident that it will be able to achieve customer

satisfaction.
Nonetheless the cooperation and dedication from staff, the solid and continuing support from shareholders and

clients all help contribute toward a solid and continuing growing company. The Board and Management will perform our

duties to the best of our ability and be ready to move on to an increasingly more challenging goal.

(Mr. Preecha Veerapong)
The Chairman of the Board
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Audit Committee Report

The Audit Committee of Eastern Commercial Leasing PLC as appointed by the Board of Directors comprising 3

directors. These directors are not executive directors and not Company employees.

The Audit Committee performed its duty as assigned by the Board with emphasis on ethical conduct, transparency,
check and balance, and auditable behavior within an appropriate system of internal control, in compliance with the laws, and

regulation of the supervisory authority.

During the year 2007, the Audit Committee convened 4 times to perform its duties within the scope and responsibilities

assigned by the Board summarized as follows :

1. Reviewing Fiscal Annual and Quarterly Financial Statements to ensure accurate financial reporting, and adequate
disclosure in joint meeting with external auditor, internal auditor, and Management who are responsible for
preparation of financial statements. This was to listen to clarification, observation, suggestion, and exchange idea
as pertinent to the audit result to render the financial statements reporting financial position accurately in
accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles including sufficient and complete disclosure within
the financial statements.

2. Approving Internal Audit Plan, reviewing audit results and suggestion made by internal auditor as pertinent to
internal control, and submitting to Management for improvement consideration and rectification as appropriate,

including the continuing monitoring of the progress on improvement and rectification.

3. Arranging for the supervision of the operation to be in full compliance with the law and regulations of the

supervisory authority.

4. Arranging for the supervision and engaging in sampling review transactions entered into with related individuals or
entities whether they have been conducted in accordance with established policies. The result of the Audit
Committee review indicated that the aforementioned transactions were reasonable and beneficial to the Company
and conducted in the same manner as the usual trade transactions with appropriate and complete disclosure.

5. Arranging for the supervision of risk management of the Company’s important risk exposures.

6. Jointly with the Board of Directors considering the selection and appointment of the external auditor including the

appropriate compensation for the purpose of submission for approval at the Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting

Bt B

(Mr. Chinsuk Viravan)
The Chairman of the Adit Committee
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2. Financial Information Summary

@

Baht in Thousand

Asset

Total Asset 1,076,932.76 1,123,097.51 1,236,171.17
Hire Purchase Receivable - Net 986,962.30 977,985.13 1,099,178.94
Sale w/Right fo Redemption Agreement Receivables 22,127.89 91,373.87 62,300.15
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity

Total Liabilities 632,813.69 670,152.91 783,561.25
Overdrafts and Loan 619,924.72 657,486.98 765,380.15
Shareholders’ Equity 444,119.06 452,944.60 452,609.92
Operating Results

Total Revenue 138,291.93 149,668.12 139,849.12
Hire Purchase Income - Net 103,867.45 112,404.37 110,423.99
Income from Sale w/Right of redemption - Net 9,107.50 13,561.19 4,584.64
Operating Expenses 75,070.81 70,310.20 68,629.02
Net Income (Loss) After Tax (8,825.54) 16,734.68 19,428.62
Profitability Ratio

Interest Income (%) 10.87% 11.29% 10.29%
Interest Expense (%) 5.75% 6.29% 4.47%
Net Interest Income (%) 5.12% 5.00% 5.82%
Net Income (Loss) After Tax (%) (6.38)% 11.18% 13.89%
Net Profit per Share (0.0215) 0.04 0.05
Return on Equity (%) (1.97)% 3.70% 4.27%
Operating Efficiency Ratio

Return on Total Asset (%) (0.80)% 1.42% 1.63%
Total Asset Turnover (Times) 0.13 0.13 0.12
Book Value per Share 1.08 1.10 1.10
Financial Policy Ratio Analysis

Total Liabilities to Equity (Times) 1.42 1.48 1.73
Loan to Borrowing (Times) 1.63 1.57 1.48
Dividend Payout Ratio (%) 0.00% 84.41% 131.09%
Asset Quality Ratio

Provision for Doubtful Debt over Total Receivables (% ) 3.48% 2.53% 2.43%
Bad Debts over Total Receivables (%) 2.23% 1.25% 0.18%
Non Accrued Receivables over Total Receivables (%) 4.52% 4.77% 4.37%

year 2005 - Dividend paid from 2004 results at Bht 0.20 / share (stock valued B5 / share)
year 2006 - Dividend paid from 2005 results at Bht 0.04 / share (stock valued B1 / share).

- Dividend paid from Jan - Sep 2006 results at Bht 0.02 / share (stock valued B1 / share)
year 2007 - Suspension of dividend payout
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3. Nature of the Business

Founded on May 19" 2003, through the merger between Eastern Commercial Leasing Co. Ltd. (former) and
Professional Leasing Co. Ltd., Eastern Commercial Leasing Public Co. Ltd. (ECL) is engaged in used motor vehicle hire
purchase. ECL became listed in the Securities Exchange of Thailand on March 1%, 2004.

ECL engages in motor vehicle hire purchase, and floor plan finance. ECL’s credit portfolio consists of Net Hire
Purchase Receivables amounting to Baht 986.96 million, and Floor Plan Finance Receivable amounting to Baht 22.13 million
or 97.81%, and 2.19% respectively.

1. Motor Vehicle Hire Purchase Finance Business

ECL provides motor vehicle hire purchase finance primarily with emphasis on popular in demand used passenger
motor vehicles. Most clients reside in Bangkok and nearby provinces including the province of Cholburi. These clients
are general retail consumers referred to ECL by automobile dealers and existing ECL clients. ECL also provides vehicle
registration renewal, vehicle insurance policy renewal, and third party insurance renewal services. These policies help protect
risks against vehicles which are the securities supporting vehicle finance. They also provide additional service income to ECL.

2. Motor Vehicle Floor Plan Finance Business

This is the credit extension to support motor vehicle distributors specifically providing liquidity to purchase vehicles for
sales.

ECL considers providing credit facility to credit worthy dealers on the basis of their reasonably sound business and the
continuing good relationship with ECL. For the purpose of drawdown of credit facility, dealers may submit vehicle registration

for vehicles purchased by them to ECL. ECL may approve drawdown up to 75-80% of the purchase price of the vehicles.

ECL’s Revenue Structure

Revenue structure as at December 31, 2005, 2006, and 2007 was as follows:

2007 2006 2005

Line of Business Revenue Revenue Revenue

Baht Million| Per cent [Baht Million| Per cent |Baht Million| Per cent

1. Motor Vehicle Hire

Purchase Business 103.87 75.11 112.40 75.10 110.42 78.96
2. Floor Plan Finance Business 9.11 6.59 13.56 9.06 458 3.27
Revenue from Credit Extension 112.98 81.70 125.96 84.16 115.00 82.23

3. Other Revenue

- Fees and Service 14.15 10.23 1212 8.10 16.66 11.91
- Others 11.16 8.07 11.59 7.74 8.19 5.86
Other Revenue Total 25.31 18.30 23.71 15.84 24.85 17.77
Total Revenue 138.29 100.00 149.67 100.00 139.86 100.00
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4. Risk Factors

Risk factors which may occur and affect the operations of the company consist of the following :

4.1 Risk Arising from the Volatility of Interest Rate

Hire purchase business generates revenue from the difference between interest receipt and interest expense (spread).
Changes in the prevailing hire purchase market rate and lending interest rate charged by financial institutions affect the
operations of the Company. When there is indication that lending rate is rising, the Company adjusts rate charged to customer
to minimize adverse impact from interest differential. The Company as a matter of policy shall mitigate risk arising from
interest rate volatility by sourcing fixed rate funding with low rate of interest. The funding shall have loan tenor close to the
average life of the outstanding credit portfolio with profitable interest spread.

The proportion of fixed rate and floating rate funding of the Company as at December 31, 2005, 2006, and 2007 is as follows:

December 31, 2007 | December 31, 2006 | December 31, 2005

Type of Interest Rate
Baht Million| Percent |Baht Million| Percent |Baht Million| Percent
- Fixed Rate 289.96 46.77 382.39 58.16 370.79 48.45
- Floating Rate 329.96 53.23 275.10 41.84 394.58 51.55
Total 619.92 100.00 657.49 100.00 765.37 100.00
Notes * Fixed Rate loans include part of long term debt, and short term loan

* Floating Rate debts consist of overdraft, and long term debt (including current portion of long term debt)

4.2 Liquidity Risks

The company’s source of fund comprises shareholders’ fund and borrowing from financial institution as at the end of
December 31, 2006, and 2007 in the following proportion :

2007 2006

Baht Million Percent Baht Million Percent

Shareholders’ Equity 444.23 41.75 452,94 40.79
Borrowing

- Short Term Loan * 327.72 30.79 376.44 33.90

- Long Term Loan 292.20 27.46 281.05 25.31

Total Borrowing 619.92 58.25 657.49 59.21

Grand Total 1,064.15 100.00 1,110.43 100.00

Note : * Short Term Loan includes overdraft, Bill of Exchange, and Current Portion of Long Term Debt end of 2006

amounting to Baht 263.87, and 2007 amounting to Baht 259.41 million

The Company has the policy of protecting itself from this risk by utilizing long term credit facilities with repayment
term corresponding to the cash flow receipt from customer installment payment. The Company also controls receivable
collection efficiently to mitigate risk of the disparity between source and use of fund. As at December 31, 2007 the Company
had obligation to repay loan maturing within one year amounted to Baht 327.72 million. At the same time the Company had
installment receivable within one year from its credit portfolio amounted to Baht 458.18 million which was sufficient to meet
its debt obligation

(Detail of the relationship between the source and use of capital appears in Section 7, Explanation and Analysis of

Financial Position and Operating Results)
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4.3 Marketing Risks and Competition

Competition in the hire purchase business stresses the reduction of rate of interest resulting in the continuing decline
in the hire purchase rate or upward adjustment at a slower pace than the increase in the prevailing loan rate quoted by
financial institution. This has been particularly true in the hire purchase finance provided by motor vehicle manufacturer captive
hire purchase companies emphasizing new vehicles. This includes hire purchase finance companies which are commercial
banks or companies affiliated with a number of financial institutions. They have altered their strategy from the original new
vehicle finance to expansion increasingly into used vehicle finance in order to earn a higher rate of hire purchase comparing
to new vehicles. This resulted in increasing competition in the used vehicle finance as well. Used vehicle finance rates were
5% in 2004, 2005, 2006, and 4.5% during the year 2007.

Because of such competition, the Company does not have policy of competition through rate reduction. Instead the
Company adapts itself through efficiency, flexible policy, and skills with acquired experiences from long years of business, the
speedy and good quality service to customer, the maintenance of good relationship providing good benefits to motor vehicle
dealers including the expanding relationship with more used vehicle dealers.

4.4 Risk from Credit Extension for Used Motor Vehicle Finance

Although used vehicle finance provides greater return than new vehicles the risks are also higher in particular the risk
of appraising the quality of used vehicle taken as collateral for hire purchase finance. The company attempts to reduce risk in
this regard by recruiting experience and skillful appraisal staff to support marketing of used vehicle finance, and careful
selection of high standard used vehicle dealers who are financially sound and offer to sell quality used vehicles with
appropriate price. This will help reduce risk for the vehicle quality and build client confidence. The Company also maintains
policy of lending the amount below market value, and increases down payment to mitigate risks. In any event, the Company
has not incurred loss as a result of incorrect appraisal of vehicle quality used as collateral in the credit extension process.

4.5 Operating Risks Arising From Non-Performing Assets

To mitigate such risk, the Company maintains stringent measures on every steps of the credit process including the
requirement for personal guarantee for hirer, the establishment of an appropriate level of down payments corresponding to
the risk, credit check on all hirers, and the sufficient bad debt reserve in accordance with Company standard. The Company
also maintains system of audit, internal control, and good and efficient reporting which help reduce the problem of
non-performing credit. During the years 2006, and 2007, non-accrued customers overdue 5 months or more, and litigation
cases with final judgment amounted to Baht 47.00 million, and Baht 45.96 million accounted for 4.77%, and 4.52% of total
receivables respectively.

The reduction in non-accrued receivables was a result of Company’s consideration for bad debt write-off amounted to
Baht 23.33 million. Nonetheless, the company recognizes the risk and attempts to closely monitor installment collection with
all follow-up measures to render the speedy and greatest recovery possible. The Company also hires outsider to help

monitors and contact these customers for vehicle return and settlement.
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4.6 Risk on Disposal of Repossessed Vehicles

Repossessed vehicles are disposed of through public auction or publicized sale. The company retains recourse to
borrower or guarantor if proceed from sale remains inadequate to settle remaining outstanding with the Company. In the
event such recourse is not possible, the company will incur loss from sale of repossessed vehicle. Selling price of such
vehicles depend on their quality, life, and popularity of the make including market condition and demand at the time for

examples upward adjustment of gasoline price, or new vehicle taxation structure declines.

For credit approval, the Company attempts to control not to extend the amount of credit too high or allow too low the
amount of down payment because the value of repossessed vehicle may be too low and inadequate to settle outstanding
balance resulted in loss to the Company. Nonetheless the Company established reserve for impairment of asset which the
Company felt to be adequate.

During 2006, the company repossessed and disposed of 280 vehicles for value Baht 65.96 million accounting for
5.65% of all vehicles under hire purchase with the Company, comparing to 193 vehicles for value Baht 41.32 million
accounting for 3.96% during 2007. The company incurred losses from disposal of repossessed vehicles amounting to Baht
19.75 and 11.47 million during 2006, and 2007 respectively.

(*Value of repossessed vehicle = debt balance - non-accrued interests + repossession costs)

4.7 Risk of Reliance on Specialists

The business of the company requires credit and marketing personnel who possess skill, and experience in appraising
vehicle, and knowledgeable about used vehicle market value including personnel who are capable of follow-up on collection.
At present the company maintains 23 credit and marketing staff and 21 collection staff which are appropriate and adequate
to support the present hire purchase portfolio. The Company provides incentive measures for these staff to stay with the
Company long term to mitigate staff loss. Such measures include development of a clear career path, an appropriate level of
compensation, and a good relationship which is conducive to employee participation, and makes employee feel the sense of
ownership of the company.

4.8 Risk on the Opportunity to Increase Future Debt Funding

As at December 31, 2007, total liabilities stood at Baht 632.81 million, and Shareholders’ Equity amounted to Baht
44412 million. The Debt-to-Equity Ratio was 1.42. Because the Company is in its expansion mode both in Bangkok and in
Cholburi, there is a need to increase debt funding in the future which will result in the greater amount of debt commitment
raising the Debt-to-Equity ratio. Nevertheless, the company will source low cost funding considering the company’s financial

structure for the benefit of the company and its shareholders.

4.9 Risk of Major Shareholder Management Influence

The Company’s major shareholders comprise the Veerapong, and the Tantraporn Families. Shareholders’ of both have
controlling interests at the Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting except for matters where the law and company articles require
voting of 3 quarters of the votes at the Annual General Shareholders® Meeting. Therefore other shareholders may not be able to
accumulate their votes sufficiently to provide a check and balance for issue the major shareholders propose at the meeting.

Nonetheless the Company has implemented policy to treat all shareholders equally and to recognize the right to
participate in shareholders’ meeting of minority shareholders. At the meeting, Board Chairman provides opportunity and
support shareholders to freely express their opinion or query on operating results of the Company, and equally participate in
the voting on all agenda

(Details include in the Good Governance section, Item 1, right of shareholders relating to ‘shareholders’ meeting process’)
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5. Shareholding Structure and Management

5.1 Shareholders

The company’s registered capital amounts to Baht 410 million fully paid up consisting of 410 million common shares
of Baht 1 par value per share. Shareholding structure and the list of the first 10 largest shareholders as at the close of Share
Registry on January 24, 2008

Rank Names Number of Shares Held Percent
(Shares)
1 The Veerapong Family 173,734,675 42.38
2 The Tantraporn Family 33,820,210 8.25
3 Mr. Kiet Chansavangpuvana 15,734,200 3.84
4 Mr. Pravit Phongsopa 13,285,700 3.24
5 Korat Industry Co., Ltd. 9,000,000 2.19
6 Mr. Charn Lertpraserttavorn 7,763,600 1.89
7 Mr. Tanapol Sabsomboon 5,120,000 1.25
8 Miss Pataraporn Urngpitakpan 4,723,500 1.15
9 Mr. Yongyuth Satientirakul 4,285,700 1.04
10 Khun Ying Uapranee Jeeravanont 4,000,000 0.98
1 Others 138,632,415 33.79
Total 410,000,000 100.00
Par Value Baht 1 per Share

5.2 Management

Company director structure consists of 3 committees namely the Board of Directors, the Audit Committee, and the
Executive Committee with names, duty and authority as follows :

(1) The Board of Directors

The Board of Directors consists of 9 directors as at December 31, 2007 (all directors have been trained with the

Director Accreditation Program, and the Director Certification Program)

Rank Name Position
1. Mr. Preecha Veerapong The Chairman of the Board
2. Mr. Danucha Veerapong Vice Chairman, and Chairman of the Executive Committee
3. Mr. Prapakorn Veerapong Vice Chairman of the Executive Committee
4. Mrs. Duangrat Jaengmongkol Member of the Executive Committee
5. Miss Areechit Sasiprapa Independent Director
6. Mr. Pravit Phongsopa Independent Director
7. Mr. Chinsuk Viravan Independent Director, and the Chairman of the Audit Committee
8. Mr. Phiphat Pornsuwan, Independent Director, Audit Committee Member
9. Police Lieutenant General Amporn Charuchinda  Independent Director, Audit Committee Member

Mrs. Pimolwan Wangsinsuksom acts as Board Secretary.
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Authorized Directors

Authorized Directors consist of Mr. Preecha Veerapong, Mr. Danucha Veerapong, Mr. Prapakorn Veerapong, and

Mrs. Duangrat Jaengmongkol. Any two of the four authorized directors may sign jointly and affixed with company seal to bind

the company.

Duty and Authority of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors has authority, duty, and responsibility in managing the company in accordance with the law,

objectives, and articles of the company, as well as legitimate resolution passed at the General Shareholders’ Meeting, with

honesty, and care in safeguarding the company’s interests. In summary, important authority, duty, and responsibility are:

1.

to arrange for the Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting within 4 months after the date of the close of the
company’s book of accounts.

to arrange for the meeting of the Board of Directors at least once every 3 months.

to arrange for the preparation of Balance Sheet as at the end of the fiscal year, and Income Statement for the year
ended at the same date, the financial statements of which have been audited and presented for consideration and
approval at the General Shareholders’ Meeting.

to delegate its authority to one or more directors or other individuals to perform any acts on behalf of the Board
of Directors.

to establish goal, guidance, policy, plan, and budget of the company, supervise, oversee the administration and
management of the Executive Committee in accordance with established policies with the exception of such
matters which the Board of Directors require the approval via the resolution passed at the General Shareholders’
Meeting prior to the execution namely matters by law require approval at the General Shareholders’ Meeting such
as the increase, decrease of capital, the issuance of debenture, the sale or transfer of the company in whole or in
part with material substance to other individuals or the acquisition or being recipient of the transfer of other
company, the modification of the memorandum and articles of association of the company.

In addition, duties of the Board also encompasses the supervision of the company to perform in accordance with
the law relevant to the securities, and securities exchange for example related party transaction and the purchase
and sale of assets of material substance in accordance with regulation of the Securities Exchange of Thailand or
other law relevant to the company’s business.

to consider structure of management, to appoint the Executive Committee, its Chairman, and other committee as
appropriate.

to continuously monitor the operating results in accordance with business plan, and budget

Directors must not engage in the same type of business and in competition with the company or being partner in
an ordinary partnership, or being managing partner in a limited partnership, or being director of private companies
or other companies engaging in similar business and in competition with the company regardless of whether such
acts are for the individual directors’ interests or others’ except for the notification at the General Shareholders’
Meeting prior to the appointment.

Directors must inform the company without delay in the event conflict of interests arises directly or indirectly
within the contract the company enters into or increase, decrease in shares or debenture holding in the company

or group companies.
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(2)  The Audit Committee

As at December 31, 2007, there were 3 committee members consisting of

Rank Name Position
1. Mr. Chinsuk Viravan The Chairman of the Audit Committee
2. Mr. Phiphat Pornsuwan Audit Committee Member
3. Police Lieutenant General Amporn Charuchinda Audit Committee Member

Mrs. Pimolwan Wangsinsuksom acts as Committee Secretary.

Duty and Authority of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee reports to the Board of Directors. The Audit Committee is assigned the scope, duty, and

responsibility by the Board of Director summarized below.

1.
2.

To review and ensure the company reporting accurate financial information with sufficient disclosure.

To review and ensure the company establishes an appropriate and effective system of internal control and internal
audit.

To review and ensure the conduct of the company in compliance with regulations of the securities exchange and
relevant law

To consider the selection and propose for appointment of the external auditor including the compensation of the
auditor

To consider the accurate and complete disclosure of company information as pertinent to the related party
transaction, or transactions which may result in the conflict of interest

To perform other duties as assigned by the Board of Directors as appropriate and corresponding to the principle
of good governance for example the review of financial management policy, risk management, and review of the
management conduct in accordance with business ethics, review with management in important reports.

To prepare report of the Audit Committee’s oversight, and disclose the report within Company’s Annual Report
such report to be affixed with the signature of the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

8. To report the Audit Committee’s activities to the Board of Directors at least once a year

The Audit Committee is authorized to conduct audit and investigation on various matters as necessary including
soliciting independent opinion from consultant in any professions as necessary at the expense of the company to
ensure successful fulfillment of its duties and responsibilities.

(3) The Executive Committee

As at December 31, 2007 there were 7 committee members consisting of :

Rank Name Position
1. Mr. Danucha Veerapong Chairman of the Executive Committee
2. Mr. Prapakorn Veerapong Vice Chairman of the Executive Committee
3. Mrs. Duangrat Jaengmongkol Member of the Executive Committee
4. Miss Manasanant Banjerdkit Member of the Executive Committee
5. Mr. Suwat Rojanasoontra Member of the Executive Committee
6.  Mrs. Charatsang Yuampai Member of the Executive Committee
7. Mr. Somchai Watthanasuphasirikul Member of the Executive Committee

Mrs. Pimolwan Wangsinsuksom acts as Committee Secretary.
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Duty and Authority of the Executive Committee

The Executive Committee has authority, duty, and responsibility in managing the on-going operation, and other

administrative function of the company. The Committee is to establish policy, business plan, budget, management structure,

company’s delegation of authority, and operating procedures corresponding to the economic condition in order to submit to

the Board of Directors for consideration and approval and/or acknowledgement including the audit, and follow-up the

operating result in accordance with established policy. In summary, the important duty, authority, and responsibility of the

Committee are as follow:

1.

10.

To operate and manage the business of the company fully in accordance with the objectives, the articles, policy,
rules, regulation, orders and resolution of the Board of Directors and/or resolution at the General Shareholders’
Meeting

To consider policy establishment, direction, and strategy for the operation of the company, the establishment of
financial plan, budget, human resources management, investment in information technology, business expansion,
public relations, and control and supervision to ensure appointed sub-committee’s conduct fulfilling the Committee’s
goal.

. To consider annual budget appropriation as proposed by Management prior to the submission to the Board of

Directors for consideration and approval, including the consideration and approval for modification, increase in
annual expense budget during the period when the Board is not in session and subsequently submit for

acknowledgement when the Board convenes its session.

. The Committee is authorized to consider and approve operating expenses in the normal course of its business for

example bank account setup, acquisition of assets, acquisition of motor vehicles, credit approval within the limit of
Baht 50 Million per transaction.

. The Committee is authorized to approve important investment expenditures which have been included in the

annual expense budget as assigned by the Board of Directors or as approved in principle by the Board of Directors.

. The Committee is authorized to consider and approve borrowing, lending, arranging for credit facilities, issuance of

instrument including providing securities, guarantee for loan or credit, or solicitation of any credit facilities of the

company.

. The Committee is to function as an advisory committee assisting Management in the areas of financial policy,

marketing, human resources management, and other operating areas.

. The Committee is to establish organizational structure, delegation of authority for the management of the

company, including the appointment, hiring, transfer, and establishment of salary and wages, compensation,

bonus for management staff, and employment termination.

. The Committee is authorized to delegate under power of attorney to one or more committee members or other

individuals to perform any duties under the Committee’s supervision

To perform any other duties as assigned by the Board of Directors from time to time.
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(4)  The Management

As at December 31, 2007, there were 7 members of management consisting of the following:

Rank Name Position
1. Mr. Danucha Veerapong Chairman of the Executive Committee
2. Mr. Prapakorn Veerapong Managing Director
3. Mrs. Duangrat Jaengmongkol Deputy Managing Director
4. Mr. Somchai Watthanasuphasirikul Assistant Managing Director - Marketing
5. Mr. Suwat Rojanasoontra Assistant Managing Director - Operation
6.  Mrs. Charatsang Yuampai Assistant Managing Director - Risk Analysis
7. Miss Manasanant Banjerdkit Finance Manager

Duty and Authority of the Chairman of the Executive Committee

To supervise the on-going operations and/or the administration of the company.

To engage or perform duty in accordance with policy, plan, and budget as approved by the Board of Directors and/
or the Executive Committee.

The Chairman is authorized as delegated by the company to manage the business of the company in accordance
with the objectives, the articles, policies.

The Chairman is authorized to appoint and manage the various sub-committees for the benefit, efficient and good
management of the company.

To follow-up and assess the operation of the company regularly to prevent risks from various factors from within
or outside the company.

To consider entering into contracts involving the business of the company and other contracts for the benefit of
the company and submit for acknowledgement at the Executive Committee, and the Board of Directors.

To consider the profit and loss of the company. To propose interim dividend declared or annual dividend declared
for Board of Directors approval.

To consider appropriation of retirement benefit, reward, or various compensation which have been approved by
the Board of Directors for employees or any other individuals performing duties for the company.

To perform any other duties as assigned by the Board of Directors from time to time.

Duty and Authority of the Managing Director
1.

To establish mission, objectives, guidelines, policies of the company including command and supervision of the
entire operations of the company.

The Managing Director is authorized to consider hiring, appointment, transfer across functional lines/departments/
section or termination of employment, establish hiring rate, compensation, bonus including fringe benefit involving
all employees of the company.

The Managing Director is authorized to issue order, rules, announcement, memoranda to enable operations in
accordance with policies and interests of the company and to maintain order, discipline within the organization.
To engage in activities involving the general administration of the company.

To be authorized to on delegate and/or delegating other individuals to perform specific duties on behalf of the

Managing Director such delegation to be within the scope of authority delegated in accordance with the power of

attorney, rules, regulation or instruction issued by the Board of Directors and/or established by the company.
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5.2.1 Recruitment of Directors and Management Staff
- The Board of Directors

The Board acts as the Nomination committee considering highly qualified individuals with experiences in executive
position within entities with appropriate qualification for the position of directors and submits for approval at the General

Shareholders’ Meeting. There are generally two occasions requiring the appointment of directors :

1) Appointment of directors by resolution of the shareholders for example appointment of directors replacing
directors who are scheduled to be retired at the Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting and/or the appointment of
new director requiring approval at the General Shareholders’ Meeting. The Board is to submit names of candidates
with appropriate qualification for the position of director to the General Shareholders’ Meeting for consideration.

The Meeting shall consider according to standard, and procedures per company articles namely.

1.1 One shareholder has voting right equal to the number of shares held

1.2 The poll for director may be conducted with voting for each individual director, one poll for one director or
one poll for multiple number of directors as the Meeting sees fit. In each poll, each shareholder must vote
with the number of votes per 1.1 in its entirety. The shareholder may not allocate one’s votes to multiple
candidates.

1.3 The vote for director is by majority with the Chairman having the casting vote in the event of a tie vote.

1.4 At the Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting each year, at least a third or proportion close to a third of the

number of directors shall retire with the longest service directors retiring first. Retired directors are eligible
to be reappointed.

2) The appointment of director replacing retired director for reasons other than scheduled retirement in accordance
with Company Articles namely the Board considers individuals with required qualification and without prohibitive
record according to law, to be appointed as director at the next meeting of the Board unless the service tenor of
the Board is less than 2 months old. The replacement director shall stay as director only within the service tenor
remaining of the director one replaces. The voting of the Board for such director must be at least three-quarter of

the total votes of the Board remaining.

- Directors designated from major shareholders

The Company has four directors representing the major shareholders namely Mr. Preecha Veerapong, Mr. Danucha
Veerapong, Mr. Prapakorn Veerapong, and Mrs. Duangrat Jaengmongkol

- The Executive Committee

The Board is authorized to select a number of directors to be appointed as Executive Committee members.

- Independent Directors

The Board or the General Shareholders’ Meeting appoints independent directors. The Company has 5 independent
directors. Selection process is in accordance with regulations established by the Securities Exchange Commission, and the
Securities Exchange of Thailand.
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Definition of an independent director is a director with qualification as prescribed by the Securities Exchange

1)

Directors holding no more than 5% of the paid up capital of the Company, subsidiary, affiliate, or related entities
including holding via related entities.

Directors not participating in the management of the Company, subsidiary, affiliate, related entities, or major
shareholders including not an employee, not an advisor on payroll of the Company, subsidiary, affiliate, related
entities, or major shareholder.

Directors with no benefit or interest, direct or indirect, both financially and administratively of the Company,
subsidiary, affiliate, or Company’s major shareholders.

Directors not a related party, or close relative to management or major shareholders of the Company.

Directors not appointed to represent and safeguard interests of company directors, major shareholders, or
shareholders who are related party to major shareholders.

Directors capable of performing their duties, expressing opinion, or reporting independently the performance of

their duties as assigned by the Board, and not under the control of Management or Company’s major shareholders
including related parties, or close relatives of the individuals mentioned.

- The Audit Committee

The Board of Directors or the General Shareholders’ Meeting appoints Audit Committee members. The Audit

Committee members must be independent directors with terms of service 2 years at a time. When the term expires, the

independent directors are eligible to be reappointed.

- Management

Consideration for promotion or hiring of appropriate personnel to the position of Company management is the

responsibility of the Executive Committee.

5.2.2 Directors and Management Compensation

Financial Compensation

Compensation to each director for the year 2007 was paid out in the form of director’s meeting fee detailed as follow:

Name Amount in Baht

1. Mr. Preecha Veerapong 1,200,000
2. Mr. Suthisak Hosakul 40,000
3. Miss Areechit Sasiprapa * 40,000
4. Mr. Bhavud Vathanakul 20,000
5. Mr. Pravit Phongsopa ** 60,000
6. Mr. Chinsuk Viravan 120,000
7. Mr. Phiphat Pornsuwan 100,000
8.  Police Lieutenant General Amporn Charuchinda 75,000

1,655,000

*

* %

appointed as director on May 11, 2007
appointed as director on April 10, 2007
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Compensation for the Executive Committee and Management

Executive Committee and Management 7 Individuals
Financial Compensation Baht 9.02 Million
Forms of Compensation Salary, bonus, provident fund Gasoline and phone bills

5.2.3 Good Governance

The Company maintains good governance policy with transparency and managing the business with care in order to
achieve the highest benefit to the company over the long term. This should build confidence among shareholders, investors
and all relevant parties.

The Board has established policy relating to business ethics and ethical manual for directors, management,
employees, and overseas its compliance. In the company’s conduct of its business, the Board, Management and employees
intend to capitalize on their knowledge, competence, and experience with honesty to render the business continuing growth
and to perform their duties in accordance with Law, regulation, and business ethics of the company, as well as equal
treatment to all shareholders, and fairness to all parties concerned. Furthermore they recognize the importance of the system
of control, and internal audit and have accordingly prepared risk management manual to prevent risk that may arise in the
conduct of their business including the emphasis that staff at all levels perform duties and be responsibilities under those

risks management.

The Board performs in accordance with best practices for directors of listed companies (Code of Best Practices) The
Board has convened regularly, and supervises the operations of the company. The Board establishes the Audit Committee to
perform review, and supervision of the Executive Committee including overseeing the shareholders’ meeting considering
shareholders’ right with equal treatment principle. In summary, the company conducts its business in accordance with the

good governance principle and guidelines established by the stock exchange of Thailand as follow :
1. The Rights of Shareholders

The company recognizes the importance of and respects shareholders’ right which is indicated in the written policy on

good governance and shall treat all shareholders equally as follows :

1.1 The right to receive information on operating results, management policy regularly, accurately, completely and
timely

1.2 the right to receive appropriation of profit equally

1.3 the right to attend shareholders’ meeting, express opinion in the appointment or removal of directors,
appointment of auditor, and participate in the decision for important alterations including the right of minority
shareholders to submit additional meeting agenda or propose individual candidate for the position of independent
director in advance prior to the meeting date with due consideration by the Board.

1.4 the right to receive information concerning related party transactions

e the right to receive information: the Company has distributed information to shareholders regularly when there
is information requiring disclosure, and via the channels provided by the securities exchange, website of the
Company, and other printed media including distributing meeting information to shareholders in advance prior

to the meeting date

« the right to attend shareholders’ meeting: during the year 2007, the Company organized one shareholders’
meeting on April 10, 2007. The Company recognizes shareholders’ right, and encourages shareholders to

participate and vote. The Company treats all shareholders equally.
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* by “the shareholders’ meeting process” of the Company in accordance with guidelines established by
law and relevant authority as follows :

- Prior to the shareholders’ meeting date: the Company has policy to allows minority shareholders to propose
additional meeting agenda, propose individual as candidate for independent director or submit query ahead
of time and prior to the meeting date via company’s website during the 2 months period prior to the close
of the company’s accounting period. This is to allow Board consideration for appropriate agenda to be
included in the meeting agenda. In the call for shareholders’ meeting the Company announces close of its
share registry 21 days ahead of time to determine shareholders’ right to attend the meeting. The Company
forwards invitation letter in advance 9 days ahead of the meeting date providing information, date, time,
meeting venue, and meeting agenda with clarity along with information and documents relevant to the
matter requiring decision at the meeting. Shareholders are also advised on meeting procedures, and poll
procedures with such information also available in company’s website.

- meeting attendance and registration: the Company encourages equal treatment with all shareholders
and allows shareholders, who are not able to attend the meeting, to delegate other to attend and vote at
the meeting under proxy. The Company proposes one independent director as alternative to represent
shareholders under proxy. For registration, the Company allows shareholders to register for the meeting
ahead of time, and prior to the meeting, and has completed registration of all participating shareholders
promptly.

- In the shareholders’ meeting, the Company facilitates all attending shareholders at the meeting by
proceeding per sequence of the agenda, without sudden change of important information, and shareholders
who are executive not adding agenda without prior notice.

- The Board provides opportunities for shareholders the equal right to query about operating results, the
consideration and vote for all agenda utilizing the vote count of one share for one vote equally for all

- The Board has participated in the meeting in full comprising all 9 directors. The Chairman provides opportunities
for shareholders to query and express opinion and directors have responded with accurate information.

- After the meeting: the Company has advised resolutions made at the meeting, and prepared minute of the
meeting forwarded to the securities exchange within the time limit required by law including the distribution
of the minute of the meeting via Company’s website.

2. Equitable Treatment of Shareholders

The Company recognizes the importance of equal treatment with all shareholders both executive and non-executive

shareholders including foreign shareholders, majority, and minority shareholders

On right to attend shareholders’ meeting, the Board supervises by maintaining all shareholders’ right to be treated
equally by providing shareholders, who are not able to attend the meeting, to delegate their right under proxy to
independent director to attend on their behalf, to provide minority shareholders the right to propose meeting
agenda, and propose candidate for director position in advance as delineated in section “shareholders’ meeting
process”.

On conflict of interest, the Board has established rules that Company directors and Management disclose security
holding in accordance with Law and reported to the Board regularly, disclose vested interests on their own and
related parties for the Board to review the transactions with the Company to determine potential conflict of
interest, and be able to decide for the interest of the Company as a whole. In the Board meeting, in the event
where any directors appear to have conflicting interest, said directors shall not participate in the approval of the
transaction being considered and the Company shall record directors’ names with vote abstention and the

reasoning in the meeting minute on that particular issue. The Company has established policies and guidelines to
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prevent conflicting interests on related party transactions. The Company requires such transactions to be reviewed
in full details by the Audit Committee and if necessary be approved by the Board and at shareholders’ meeting
including full compliance with rules established by the securities exchange providing detailed information on
pricing, conditions as if they are transacted with external parties, and accordingly disclosed detailed transaction

value, contract parties, reasoning, and necessity for such transactions in the Annual Report and form 56-1.

e On May 11, 2007, the Board has convened its 2/2550 session to consider space lease contract in the first floor of
a building for the purpose of locating the Company’s Cholburi Branch office having the Company as lessee, and
related parties as lessor (details per section 6 Related Party Transactions), there were 6 directors attending the
meeting 3 of whom were considered to have conflicting interest and accordingly abstained, and the Board
resolved with unanimity to approve the contract.

e On the supervision regarding insider information, the Company has policy that director and management must
safeguard Company confidential information, not disclose insider information or exploit such information for their
interest or interest of other direct or indirect regardless of whether they are benefiting from it or not. Furthermore,
directors and management receiving Company financial information must not utilize such information for their
benefit prior to public disclosure in a manner considered to be advantageous to other shareholders, and may have
caused damages to shareholders as a whole. The Company has advised directors and management to refrained
from trading Company stocks for a period of 1 month prior to public disclosure of Company’s financial statements.
The Company has also advised directors and management about their duties in reporting Company securities
holding including the changes on their holding to the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Article 59

and penalty clause, Article 275 of the Securities, and Securities Exchange Act 2535

o The Company has established disciplinary penalty for those who exploit Company insider information or disclosing
such information which may have caused damage to the Company, by considering disciplinary action on a case by
case basis as outlined in the Company rules.

3. The Role of Stakeholders

The company recognizes the importance of the right of all Stakeholders regardless of whether they are internal parties
such as employees and management of the company or external interested parties namely creditors, trade partner, customer,
government and other relevant entities. The Company conducts its business in accordance with relevant regulation, law, rules
considering rights of interested parties for example the Company arranges for a fair hiring practices, good working
environment considering safety, providing fringe benefit, provident fund, and accidental insurance. The Company complies
with loan conditions in accordance with agreement entered into with creditor. The Company purchases vehicles and receives
services from dealers or trade partners in accordance with trading terms. The Company utilizes fair contract terms with
customers, maintains customer confidentiality, emphasizes services and recognizes customers’ right to utilize vehicles and
receives vehicle registration. In addition the Company establishes policies for the treatment of all interested parties within its
code of business ethics with stringent guideline for directors, management and employee to conduct their business.
The Company recognizes the importance supports derived from all interested parties which will enhance Company’s
competitiveness, profitability, and help achieve the long term success of the Company. The Company therefore has increased
channel of communication between the interested parties with the Company via its website : http//www.ecl.co.th for
information, complaints. During the year 2007, the Company received no complaints from interested parties.
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4. Disclosure and Transparency

o Efficiency of the information disclosure process as required from a registered company : The Company recognizes
Company information relating to financial or non-financial both have impact on investor decision making and interested parties.
Management recognizes such importance and undertakes to disclose complete and accurate, reliable, regularly, and timely
information. Disclosed information must have passed the review of the responsible individuals and with consent from the
Chairman of the Executive Committee. The Company distributes information, financial report via channels in the securities
exchange, annual information form, annual report, and Company website, with printed media both in Thai and English. During
2007, the Company reported financial information both quarterly and annually, and submitted information relating shareholders’
meeting in accordance with guidelines established by the securities exchange promptly without delay.

e Quality of financial report : The Board is responsible for the Company’s financial statements, and financial
information as appeared in the Annual Report. These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles in Thailand, with appropriate selection of accounting policies consistently applied, and with careful
judgment on utilization of accounting estimates to the best of their knowledge including the sufficient disclosure of important

information within the notes to financial statements.

e The Board has arranged for the maintenance of an effective system of internal control with reasonable assurance
of an accurate recording of accounting information with completeness and sufficient to safeguard assets, to identify
weaknesses and to prevent material fraud or abnormality. In this regard the Company has appointed the Audit Committee
comprising directors who are no-executive, to look after and be responsible for quality of financial report and system of
internal control coordinating between the external auditor and internal auditor. The Audit Committee’s opinion as appeared in

the Audit Committee Report is included in the Annual Report.

e Investor Relation : On the investor relation function, the Company has assigned the Chairman of the Executive
Committee to liaise with institutional investors, shareholders, including stock analysts, and government entities concerned.
The activities in this area have yet to be intensive and investors may contact for information at phone numbers 02-641-5252

or at the company’s website ecl.co.th.

e The functioning of the Board and Sub-Committees : The administrative structure of the Company comprises the
Board of Directors, the Audit Committee, the Executive Committee, and Management staff. The Board consists of 9 directors
of whom 3 are Audit Committee members, and 3 are executive directors (name list and authority of the three committees are
described per section 5.2 Management; details on directors, management, and individuals with control interests and their
positions in other companies are disclosed per Attachment 1, and 2).

o There were 4 Board of Directors’ Meeting during the year 2007 to approve audited financial statements, consider
establishing policies and Company’s business plan, control and supervision of the administration and management of the
Executive Committee as well as consideration of transactions which might have caused conflicting interests. The Company
has scheduled for the Board of Directors’ Meeting at least quarterly. Special meeting may be convened as necessary with
advance and clear agenda. There is in addition operating result follow-up agenda regularly. Invitation for Board Meeting
including agenda and documents are delivered at least 7 days prior to the meeting date to allow sufficient time to study the
information. During the meeting the Chairman encourages careful exercise of judgment. Minutes are recorded in writing and
retained as approved by the Board of Directors readily available for directors or relevant party examination.
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Name Position Number of Paticipation/

Total Number of Meeting
1. Mr. Preecha Veerapong The Chairman of the Board 3/4
2. Mr. Danucha Veerapong Executive Director 4/4
3. Mr. Prapakorn Veerapong Executive Director 4/4
4. Mrs. Duangrat Jaengmongkol Executive Director 4/4
5. Mr. Miss Areechit Sasiprapa* Independent Director 2/4
6. Mr. Pravit Phongsopa** Independent Director 3/4
7. Mr. Chinsuk Viravan Chairman of the Audit Committee 4/4
8. Mr. Phiphat Pornsuwan Audit Committee Member 4/4
9. Police Lieutenant General Amporn Charuchinda | Audit Committee Member 3/4

*  appointed as director replacing Mr. Suthisak Hosakul after the 2™ meeting

** appointed as director replacing Mr. Bhavud Vathanakul after the 1% meeting

o There were 4 Audit Committee meetings during the year 2007 to review operational report from internal auditors
and Company external auditor to assess system of internal control, review financial reports, and supervision of administration

and management of the Executive Committee.

Audit Committee attendance individual member in 2007 is summarized below :

Number of Paticipation/
Name Position
Total Number of Meeting
1. Mr. Chinsuk Viravan Chairman of the Audit Committee 4/4
2. Mr. Phiphat Pornsuwan Audit Committee Member 4/4
3. Police Lieutenant General Amporn Charuchinda | Audit Committee Member 3/4

e There were 20 Executive Committee meetings during 2007 with scheduled at least monthly and extra-ordinary
meeting as necessary to consider marketing plan, credit approval and supervision of the operations of various departments in
the normal of business of the Company.... Etc. (name list and authority of the Executive Committee is described in section 5.2

Management)

The Executive Committee appointed two sub-committees namely the Sub-Committee for Asset Appraisal responsible
for the valuation of repossessed vehicles, and management of vehicle disposal, and the Sub-Committee for Risk Management
responsible for the preparation of the risk management manual, and Company overall risk management. in accordance with the
principle of good governance. Both committees convene regularly at least once a month.

e Director and Management Compensation : The Company has yet to establish sub-committee for compensation. The
Company has nonetheless a process to consider appropriate compensation for the Board of Directors, and Management by
requesting approval for director compensation at the General Shareholders’ Meeting comparing the level of compensation
with other companies in the same industry and with similar size. During 2007, director compensation was Baht 2.2 million
where as executive compensation was considered and reviewed by the Board on the basis of their responsibility,
performance, and operating results (detailed compensation per Section - Compensation for Directors and Management,
section 5.2.2).
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5. Board Responsibility
¢ Independent from Management of the Board

The Board of Directors comprises 9 directors broken down into :

Name Executive Non-Executive Independent The Audit
Directors Directors Directors Committee
1. Mr. Preecha Veerapong /
2. Mr. Danucha Veerapong /
3. Mr. Prapakorn Veerapong /
4. Mrs. Duangrat Jaengmongkol /
5. Mr. Miss Areechit Sasiprapa / /
6. Mr. Pravit Phongsopa / /
7. Mr. Chinsuk Viravan / / /
8. Mr. Phiphat Pornsuwan / / /
9. Police Lieutenant General
Amporn Charuchinda / / /
Total 3 persons 6 persons 5 persons 3 persons

o Executive directors 3 persons representing one-third of all directors

e Non-Executive directors 6 persons representing two-third of all directors

o Independent directors 5 persons representing 55.56% of all directors including 3 members of the Audit Committee
representing one-third of all directors

e Background and positions held at other companies appeared in Attachment 1, and 2

The company has isolated the positions of the Chairman of the Board and the Chairman of the Executive Committee
both assumed separate duties by separate individuals with clear isolated authority. There is no unlimited authority in any
single individual. Nonetheless, both represent the same major shareholders namely the Veerapong Family with share holding
approximately 40% as at December 31, 2007. To achieve the balance of authority, and management review, the number of

independent directors amounts to more than half the total number of directors in the structure of the Board of Directors.

The Company arranges for the system that segregates duties and responsibility between Management and the Board
with clarity. The Board is appointed to assist supervising the Company via the two committees namely the Executive
Committee and the Audit Committee. The Executive Committee is responsible for the day to day operations of the Company
including monitoring and appraising operating results and reports its activities to the Board. The Audit Committee has duties
and responsibilities to review operations of the Company, review financial statements, and arranges for the system of internal
control and internal audit etc. and reports to the Board. The Audit Committee members are concurrently independent
directors.

The Company’s independent directors have qualification and perform their duties and responsibilities in accordance
with requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission, and the Securities Exchange of Thailand (Please refer to
section 5.2.1 on definition of independent directors, recruitment of directors, and management). During 2007, the Company
appointed two independent directors namely Mr. Pravit Phongsopa replacing Mr. Bhavud Vathanakul per resolution passed at
the shareholders’ meeting dated April 10, 2007, and Miss Areechit Sasiprapa replacing Mr. Suthisak Hosakul per resolution
passed at the Board of Directors” Meeting dated May 11, 2007. The two directors have gone through the director certification

program.
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e The Appropriateness of the Board

The Board comprises directors with wide range of qualification both in skill and experiences, and specific area
of competence beneficial to the Company including dedication of adequate time to perform their duties to fulfill their
responsibilities fully. The Board felt that the 9 directors are sufficient and the structure appropriate.

o Transparency in the Recruitment of Directors

The Company does not have Nomination Committee. Nonetheless the Board acts as Nomination committee
considering individuals with appropriate qualification to be appointed directors whom shall be proposed to the Board and at
the shareholders’ meeting for director appointment (details per section 5.2.1 Recruitment of Directors and Management)

e Board’s Efficiency in Performing its Duty

The Board has vision, leadership, and is independent in its decision making process and has increasingly stringent
role to ensure compliance with good governance standards. The Board participates in consideration for approval of the
establishment of direction, strategic objective, financial objective, the Company’s overall risk exposure, and supervision of
Management to conduct its business in accordance with established policy with efficiency and effectiveness to safeguard

shareholders’ interests.
The Board has established governance policy in writing and approved such policy implementation.

The Board encourages the preparation of business ethics manual which provides behavioral conducts of the
business for directors, management, and employees to be conscientious of the type of behavioral conducts which meet
professional standard on morality and ethics expected of them by the Company. These are conduct toward shareholders,
customer, trade partner, competitor, and employees etc. The code has been distributed so all parties are aware of its
importance and strictly adhered to it along with other rules and procedures at work. The code establishes system of routine

follow-up including penalty through disciplinary action (details per Company website).

Sample of business ethics :

The Company shall conduct its business and monitors its staff involved in the operation of the Company to adhere

to business ethics as follows :

1. Conduct business with honesty, maintain ethical business conduct as related to customer, public, and other
companies

2. Treat customers with fairness concerning merchandize and services and without prejudice

3. Conduct business with standard operating system, proper control utilizing knowledge, and competence with
care, adequate information, and with proper referential evidence, in compliance with law

4. Not to disclose customer information known from business dealing which is private information not normally
disclosed unless such disclosure is in the performance of its duty required by law

5. Allow customer complaint related to merchandize defect and inferior service quality

6. Disclose news, information on merchandize and service accurately and with completeness

7. Comply with customer agreements and terms fairly, if unable to comply must inform customer promptly and
to jointly resolve the situation

The Board supervises the Management to establish internal control on its operations both at Management and
operational levels. To enhance efficiency, the company has established duties, authority of operational staff, and management in
writing with clarity. There is control on utilization of company’s assets productively, segregation of duties among operational,
supervisory, and assessment staff to achieve appropriate check and balance. In addition, there is internal control relating to
financial management. The company arranges to have system of financial reporting for each functional management, careful
consideration for related party transactions or transactions which may have conflicting interests for the best interest of the
Company, and shareholders overall.
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Management responsible for the Company’s operating result is to prepare on a quarterly basis financial report.
The Audit Committee is to review financial report in coordination with the external auditor, and the internal auditor, and submit

for approval with the Board.

Internal Audit : The Board has selected IVL Audit to perform internal audit and provide improvement advice to
rectify weaknesses of the system of internal control of the Company. IVL Audit is not Company’s external auditor, and
maintains independence by reporting audit finding directly to the Audit Committee. IVL Audit provides internal audit activities
to ensure the core operational and important financial activities of the Company are conducted in accordance with established
guidelines with efficiency including legal compliance audit, and compliance audit on regulation relating to the Company
(Compliance Control).

On risk management : the Board encourages the preparation of the “Risk Management Policy” be establishing
policy on risk management to cover the entire organization for Management to implement and report to the Board regularly
(details on internal control and risk management per section 5.2.4 Internal Control)

The other committees namely the Executive Committee, the Audit Committee as appointed by the Board, and
Sub-Committee on Asset Appraisal, and Sub-Committee on Risk Management as appointed by the Executive Committee
(duties and meetings of the 4 committees described in section 4, Information Disclosure and Transparency under “The

Functioning of the Board and other Committees”)

Self Assessment

The Board supervises directors and executives to undertake self-assessment, to be performed individually, and
assess the Board as a whole with an effective process including reporting assessment result annually to ensure clarity of

result and follow-up to improve on the development of the good governance principle continuously.

Director and Management Development

When there is change in director, the Management shall prepares documents and information relevant to the
nature of the Company’s business, regulation, rules applicable to the Company and good governance standards for the new
directors and for acknowledgement of its duties and necessary information beneficial to its fulfillment of its duties as directors

of the Company.

The Board encourages facilitating directors, Audit Committee members, Management, Company secretary to have

opportunities to participate in the various training programs regularly for their benefit in the performance of their duties.

5.2.4 Internal Control

Eastern Commercial Leasing PCL Board of Directors’ Meeting 1/2008 on February 27, 2008 as participated by the
three Audit Committee members, the Board assessed the system of internal control by making query with the management.
The Board has come to the conclusion from the assessment in b different areas namely the organization and its control
environment, risk management, management’s operational control, information technology and communication, and system
of monitoring, that the Company has adequate system of control on transactions with major shareholders, directors, and
management, or entities related to such individuals. On control in other areas of the system of internal control, the Board was
of the opinion that the present system is appropriate and sufficient. The Board is also of the opinion that the monitoring
system of the operation of the Company is capable of safeguarding assets against management abuse or wrongful usage

without authority.
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5.3 Dividend Policy

The Company maintains the policy of keeping dividend payout ratio approximately 50% of net profit. The Board has
policy to approve interim dividend for shareholders when it is felt that the Company’s profit is sufficient. In 2006, the
Company paid out interim dividend to shareholders at the rate of Baht 0.02 per share for operating results for the period
January - September 2006 accounted for 49% of net profit. In 2007, dividend was suspended.
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6. Related Party Transactions

Summary of transactions between the Company and individuals or entities who might have conflicting interests during
the years 2006, and 2007

(1) Asset Lease

Individuals or Entities Transaction value
Description of Transactions who might have Pricing Policy in Baht
conflicting Interests 2007 2006
1. Land lease title deed 40098 located at Mr. Danucha Veerapong, | Rent payable monthly 1,465,157.87 | 1,465,157.89
Sub-District Wangtonglang, Bangkapi the lessor, is Company | at the monthly rate of
District, Bangkok, area of 275 square wah shareholder, and Baht 40,421.05 *
utilized as parking space for repossessed concurrently the director,
vehicles as well as for vehicle auction and and the Chairman of
other purposes with tenor of 3 years from the Executive Committee
August 18, 2006 to August 18, 2009. of the Company
2. Office space lease on Floor 1 of a Mr. Danucha, and Rent payable monthly 315,789.48 995,520.00
building located at 728/10, Sukhumvit Rd, Mr. Prapakorn who signed| at the monthly rate of
Bangplasoi Sub-District, Muang District, on behalf of Hitech Land | Baht 26,315.79 started
Cholburi Province, area of 244.05 square are also the Chairman of | paying rent from June
meters for use as branch office with tenor the Executive Committee, | of 2007**
of 1 year from June 1, 2007 to and Managing Director
May 31, 2008. of Eastern Commercial
Leasing PLC respectively
3. Lease of land to be utilized as parking Mr. Preecha, the landlord | 1% year monthly rent 836,210.76 836,210.76
space for the Cholburi branch, land size along with 4 other of 21,052.64, payable
45 meters wide, and 35 meters long relatives jointly leased the | twice a year each of
located at Huaykapi Sub-District, land to Eastern Baht 126,315.84
Muang District, Cholburi Province, on Commercial Leasing PLC. | 2" year monthly rent
April 24, 2006 with tenor of 3 years Mr. Preecha was a of Baht 23,157.90
from May 1, 2006 to April 30, 2009 shareholder, and the payable twice a year
Chairman of the Board each of Baht 138,947.40
of the Company 3% year monthly rent of
Baht 25,473.69 payable
(started paying rent from twice a year each of
September 3, 2007) Baht 152,842.14 ***

Remarks * The Audit Committee was of the opinion that the transaction was reasonable and committed in accordance
with market or fair value
** The Audit Committee was of the opinion that it was necessary to rent office space for the branch location
and to create opportunities for business expansion. Averaged rental rate was Baht 70.77 per square meter,
below the rental rate of Baht 375 per square meter as appraised by Prospect Appraisal Co., Ltd. dated April
30, 2004.
***  The Audit Committee was of the opinion that it was necessary to rent the land space for repossessed
vehicle parking at Cholburi Branch. Averaged rental rate of Baht 13.37 per square meter was reasonable and
below the rental rate in other areas within the same sub-district.
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(2) Borrowing:

The Company borrowed short term loan from individuals who were shareholders by issuing fixed period short term
bill of exchange with tenor of 182 days with said shareholder detailed as follows :

Detailed Borrowing
Date Related Parties Relationship
Rate of Interest Amount Interest Paid
November Mr. Vara Tantraporn Shareholder 475 5,000,000 115,684.67
16, 2007 Miss Vittra Tantraporn Shareholder 4.75 5,000,000 115,684.67
Mr. Preecha Veerapong Shareholder 475 20,000,000 462,738.70
Mr. Bancha Tantraporn Shareholder 4.75 5,000,000 115,684.67

Necessity and Reasonableness of Related Party Transactions

Related party transactions have been reasonable and conditions between parties have been established capable of
being compared with normal transactions with other entities without relationship. The Company anticipates that there may be

more of the related party transaction in this same nature, in the future.

Measures and the Approval Process for Related Party Transaction

Related party transactions are conducted primarily with due consideration for the interest of the Company.
Considerations include the reason, necessity, and payment in accordance with market or fair value. The Audit Committee shall
consider and provide its opinion for the said transaction and submit to the Board for consideration and approval. The Board
consideration shall exclude directors who have vested interest in the transaction.

(Details are disclosed in Clause 2, Equitable Treatment of Shareholders, and Clause 6, Related Party Transactions)

Policy and Trend toward Related Party Transaction

In the future, related party transactions with individuals or entities who may have conflicting interests or vested interest,
as a matter of policy, the Company shall request opinion from the Audit Committee as pertinent to the necessity, the best

interest to the Company of those transactions, the appropriateness of pricing, and the reasonableness of the transactions.

In the event the Audit Committee lacks the expertise in consideration of the related party transactions, the Company
shall seek opinion from independent subject matter expert or Company auditor for opinion on the transactions as well. This
opinion shall be submitted to assist the Board’s, or the Shareholders’ decision making process as appropriate. Individuals with

vested interest in the transactions shall not authorize such transactions by themselves.

In conducting the transaction, the Company shall engage the transaction in accordance with the normal business
practices and in accordance with law and regulations of the security exchange including the rules on disclosure of related
party transactions and the acquisition or disposal of Company’s essential assets per accounting standards. The Company shall

disclose related party transactions in the Notes to Financial Statements as audited by Company auditor.
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7. Financial Position and Operating Results

Financial Statements

Auditor

Certified Public Accountant
Year Auditor Audit Firm
License Number

2007 Miss Somjintana Pholhirunrat* 5599 DIA International Auditing
2006 Mrs. Suvimol Krittayakiern* 2982 DIA International Auditing
2005 Mrs. Suvimol Krittayakiern* 2982 DIA International Auditing

Note : * the auditor has been on the SEC list of acceptable auditors

Audit Report Summary

The auditor provided an unqualified audit report / review of company’s financial statements ofver the past 3 years.

Audit Fee

- The company paid out audit fee to company auditor amounted to Baht 780,000 during the previous fiscal year.

Other fee

- None -

$190UUS:9U meeo




Eastern Commercial Leasing Public Company Limited @

(1) Financial Summary Table

(a) Balance Sheet and Income Statement of Eastern Commercial Leasing PLC
Unit in Baht’000

2007 2006 2005

Audited Audited Audited
Assets
Cash and Deposit at Financial Institution 17,164.13 1.59% 5,759.83 0.51% 727416 0.59%
Hire purchase Receivable - Net 986,962.30 | 91.65% 97798513 | 87.08% | 1,099,17894 | 88.92%
Lease Receivable - Net 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sale w/Right of Redemption Agreement Receivable 22,127.89 2.06% 91,373.87 8.14% 62,300.15 5.04%
Property Foreclosed - Net 9,888.24 0.92% 6,238.41 0.56% 21,133.05 1.71%
Sundry Current Asset 11,108.57 1.03% 15,302.17 1.36% 14,966.03 1.20%
Land Building and Equipment Net 26,526.02 2.46% 23,622.91 2.10% 23,934.13 1.94%
Cash at Bank - with Commitment 3,127.21 0.29% 2,786.79 0.25% 7,356.31 0.60%
Other Non - Current Asset 28.40 0.00% 28.40 0.00% 28.40 0.00%
Total Assets 1,076,932.76 | 100.00% | 1,123,097.51 | 100.00% | 1,236,171.17 | 100.00%
Liabilities
Overdrafts 24,083.10 2.23% 58,821.35 5.24% 36.644.83 2.96%
Current Portion of Long Term Debt 259,411.41 24.08% 263,867.79 23.49% 288,323.36 23.32%
Long Term Lease due within One Year 0 0 0 0 0 0
Short Term Loan 4422771 411% 53,747.92 4.79% 79,545.76 6.43%
Sundry Current Liabilities 12,888.97 1.20% 12,665.94 1.13% 18,181.10 1.47%
Long Term Debt 292,202.50 | 27.13% 281,049.91 | 25.03% 360,866.20 | 29.19%
Long Term Lease Payable 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Liabilities 632,813.69 | 58.75% | 670,152.91 | 59.67% | 783,561.25 | 63.37%
Shareholders’ Equity
Share Premium 21,508.71 2.00% 21,508.71 1.92% 21,508.71 1.74%
Common Shares Issued and Paid Up 410,000.00 | 38.07% 410,000.00 | 36.51% 410,000.00 | 33.17%
Retained Earning - Legal Reserve 7,500.99 0.70% 7,286.25 0.65% 6,449.52 0.53%
Un - appropriated Retained Earning 5,109.36 0.48% 14,149.63 1.26% 14,651.69 1.19%
Total Shareholders’ Equity 444,119.06 | 41.25% | 452,944.60 | 40.33% | 452,609.92 | 36.63%
Revenue and Expense
Realized Lease Income - - - - - -
Hire Purchase Revenue 103,867.45 | 75.11% 112,404.37 | 75.10% 11042399 | 78.96%
Sale w/Right of Redpt. Income 9,107.50 6.58% 13,561.19 9.06% 4,584.64 3.28%
Other Income 2531698 | 18.31% 2370255 | 15.84% 2484049 | 17.76%
Total Revenue 138,291.93 | 100.00% | 149,668.12 | 100.00% | 139,849.12 | 100.00%
Operation Expense 75,070.81 | 54.28% 70,310.20 | 46.98% 68,629.02 | 49.07%
Financial Expense 36,729.62 | 26.56% 44,759.37 | 29.91% 32,297.90 | 23.09%
Provision for Bad Debt 8,492.39 6.14% (1,180.50) |  (0.79%) 8,074.98 5.77%
Bad Debt Expense 23,330.01 | 16.87% 13,773.06 9.20% 2,078.93 1.49%
Income Tax 3,494.63 2.53% 5,271.31 3.52% 9,339.67 6.69%
Total Expense 147,117.46 | 106.38% | 132,933.44 | 88.82% | 120,420.50 | 86.11%
Net Profit (8,825.54) | (6.38)%| 16,734.68 | 11.18% 19,428.62 | 13.89%
Net Profit per Share ** (0.0215) 0.0408 0.474
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(b) Statement of Cash Flow of Eastern Commercial Leasing PLC
Unit in Baht’000

2007 2006 2005
Audited Audited Audited
Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Net Profit (Loss) (8,825.54) 16,734.68 19,428.62
Adjustment to Net Profit on Cash Receipt (Disbursement) from Operations
Depreciation 4,889.30 4,310.73 5,365.24
Amortization 0.00 0.00 0.00
Bad Debts 23,330.01 13,773.06 2,078.93
Doubtful Account 8,492.39 (1,180.50) 8,074.98
Gain from Asset Sales (684.07) (1,850.96) (626.71)
Loss from sale of properties foreclosed 11,465.32 15,718.97 9,552.72
Impairment from properties foreclosed 1,130.49 1,494.74 2,491.90
Profit (Loss) from Operation before Changes in
Operation Asset and Liabilities 39,797.90 49,000.72 46,365.68
Changes in Operating Assets
Hire Purchase Receivable (increase) decrease (35,872.03) 89,237.22 (75,088.31)
Financial Lease Receivable (increase) decrease 0.00 0.00 0.00
Sale w/Right of Redemption Receivable (increase) decrease 65,899.51 (28,570.00) (34,015.00)
Properties Foreclosed (increase) decrease (12,223.55) 16,413.39 (4,979.64)
Othe Current Asset (increase) decrease (387.46) (1,488.36) (262.59)
Othe Non-Current Asset (increase) decrease 0.00 0.00 0.00
Changes in Operating Liabilities
Advance Received increase (decrease) 1,208.97 (3,140.92) 0.00
Other Current Liabilities increase (decrease) (985.93) (2,374.24) 933.13
Net Cash Provide (Used in) Operating Activities 57,437.41 119,077.80 (67,046.73)
Cash from Investment Activities
Cash Received from Sale of Equipment 2,574.30 1,871.36 1,302.60
Cash Paid for Purchase of Equipment (10,704.73) (2,739.83) (1,069.02)
Cash at Bank - Cash with commitment (increase) decrease (340.43) 4,569.53 1,872.96
Net Cash Provided (Used in) Investing Activities (8,470.86) 3,701.06 2,106.54
Cash from Financing Activities
Short Term Borrowings from Others and Related Parties (9,520.21) (25,797.84) 0.00
Overdrafts from Bank increase (decrease) (34,738.26) 22,176.52 10,139.25
Increase (decrease) in Long Term Debt 6,696.21 (104,271.86) 75,916.88
Long Term Lease Payable increase (decrease) 0.00 0.00 (1,607.97)
Cash Dividend Paid 0.00 (16,400.00) (24,600.00)
Cash Receipt from Capital Increase 0.00 0.00 0.00
Net Cash Provided (Used in) Financial activities (37,562.26) (124,293.18) 59,848.16
Cash or cash Equivalent increase (decrease) 11,404.29 (1,514.32) (5,092.03)
Cash or Cash Equivalent as at January 1 5,759.84 7,274.15 12,366.18
Cash or Cash Equivalent as at December 31 17,164.13 5,759.83 7,274.15
Additional Disclosure on Cash Flow Information
Cash Paid During the Year
Corporate Income Tax 3572.27 8,713.37 8,943.23
Interest Expense 37,216.05 47,896.64 31,142.13
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(2) Important Financial Ratios which reflect company’s financial position and operating result

2007 2006 2005
PROFITABILITY RATIO
Interest Income (%) 10.87% 11.29% 10.29%
Interest Expense (%) 5.75% 6.29% 4.47%
Net Interest Income (%) 5.12% 5.00% 5.82%
Net Profit Margin (%) (6.38)% 11.18% 13.89%
Net Profit per Share (Baht/Share)* (0.0215) 0.04 0.05
Return on Equity (%) (1.97)% 3.70% 4.27%
EFFICIENCY RATIO
Return on Asset (%) (0.80)% 1.42% 1.63%
Total Asset Turnover (Times) 0.13 0.13 0.12
Book Value per Share 1.08 1.10 1.10
FINANCIAL POLICY RATIO
Debt to Equity Ratio (Time) 142 1.48 173
Loan to Borrowing Ratio (Time) 1.63 1.57 1.48
Dividend Payout Ratio (%) 0.00% 84.41% 131.09%
ASSET QUALITY RATIO
Provision for Possible Loan Loss to Gross Receivable (%) 3.48% 2.53% 2.43%
Bad Debt to Gross Receivable (%) 2.23% 1.25% 0.18%
Non-Performing Loan to Gross Receivable (%) 4.52% 4.77% 4.37%

Explanation and Analysis of Financial Position and Operating Results
Operating Results

e Overview

The Company extended new hire purchase credit during the year 2007 increasing approximately 25.43% over that of
2006. Reason for the increase was because of the overall decline in the prevailing market interest rate, and the improvement
in the political environment resulting in the significant rise in credit extension over the second half of 2007. As for floor plan
finance, the Company has entered into this business continuingly over the past 2 years. However because of client liquidity

risk, and value of collateral in the current environment, the Company has decided to curtail this type of financing.

The Company reported net loss of Baht 8.83 million, a decrease of Baht 25.56 million or 152.78% over prior year. The
main reasons for the loss was because of the bad debt provisioning increasing by Baht 8.49 million, and bad debt written off
amounting Baht 23.33 million resulted in net loss per share of Baht 0.02 declining by Baht 0.06 comparing to the prior year.

e Revenue

Revenue was Baht 138.29 million, a decrease of Baht 11.38 million or 7.60% over prior year because of the slow
down in hire purchase credit extension during 2006 and its carried over effect into 2007 and the curtailment of floor plan
finance activities during 2007. The Company’s rate of interest receipt was 10.87%, a decline from interest rate of 11.29%
during 2006 (details per exhibit (2) important financial ratios). Nonetheless the Company has expanded its hire purchase
business during the second half of 2007 which should contribute toward rising hire purchase income during the subsequent

years.
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e Expenses

The company’s total expenses increased from Baht 127.66 million in 2006 to 143.62 in 2007, an increase of Baht
15.96 million or 12.50% over prior year primarily to account for provision for possible loan loss, and bad written-off.

During 2007, the Company provided for additional provision for possible loan loss amounting to Baht 8.49 million,
increasing by Baht 9.67 million or 819.49% from provision reversal of Baht 1.18 million in 2006. This was to account for rising
debtors for hire purchase and receivable with right of redemption under litigation. The consideration for provisioning for
doubtful debts was in accordance with company guideline, and policy to prevent potential future loss (details per receivable

quality section and bad debt provisioning).

Bad debt written-off during 2007 amounted to Baht 23.33 million, an increase of Baht 9.56 million or 69.42% over
Baht 13.77 million written-off during 2006. The Company has taken legal action against most of these debtors, along with
following-up on vehicle repossession, including cases where the court has passed judgment for hirers to return motor
vehicles to the Company. Where vehicles are found later on, settlement proceeds may be recognized as income.

Operating and administrative expenses were Baht 75.07 million, an increase of Baht 4.76 million or 6.77% over prior
year. The main increase was commission expenses because of rising hire purchase contracts and legal expenses related to

legal action taken against rising number of hirers.

Borrowing cost consisting mainly of interest expense amounted to Baht 36.73 million, a decrease of Baht 8.03 million
or 17.94% because of the decrease in the prevailing market rate as well as the decrease in overdraft usage. During the years
2005, 2006, and 2007, interest expense rates were 4.47, 6.29 and 5.75% respectively. Interest spreads were 5.82, 5.00, and

5.12% respectively for the said three years (details per Exhibit (2) Important Financial Ratios).

Financial Position
o Total Asset

Total asset amounted to Baht 1,236.17, 1,123.10 and 1,076.93 million as at the end of the year 2005, 2006, and 2007
respectively, a decrease of 9.15% during 2006 because of slow down in hire purchase business, a decrease of 4.11% during
2007 because of curtailment in floor plan finance. Floor plan receivables were (per Sale with right of redemption contract) Baht
62.3, 91.37, and 22.13 million as at the end of 2005, 2006, and 2007 respectively.

Return on Asset for the years 2005, 2006, and 2007 was 1.63%, 1.42%, and (0.80%) respectively. The decline was
a result of the decrease in company’s average total asset during 2007.

The company’s net asset pending disposal (Property Foreclosed) increased from Baht 6.24 million in 2006 to Baht 9.89
million in 2007. This was because of the high value of the vehicles repossessed toward the end of year 2007.

$190UUS:9U meeo




Eastern Commercial Leasing Public Company Limited @

o Quality of Receivable and Provision for Doubtful Debts

Hire purchase receivables were Baht 977.99 million, and Baht 986.96 million, and
sale with right of redemption receivables were Baht 91.37 million, and Baht 22.13 million during 2006 and 2007 respectively
with the following details :

Baht Million 2007 2006
Hire Purchase Receivable 1,151.00 1,127.35
Deduct - Unearned Interest Income (157.09) (142.20)
Hire Purchase Receivable net of Unearned 993.91 985.15
Deduct - Reserve for Bad Debt (6.95) (7.16)
Net Hire Purchase Receivable 986.96 977.99
Sale with Right of Redemption Receivable 23.62 92.51
Deduct - Reserve for Bad Debt (1.49) (1.14)
Sale with Right of Redemption Receivable Net 2213 91.37

Net receivable under litigation and compromising agreement for hire purchase and receivable with right of redemption
were Baht 2.30 million, and Baht 6.83 million at the end of 2007 and 2006 respectively detailed as follow :

Baht Million 2007 2006
Litigation in Process 25.61 20.82
Compromise Agreement 4.66 5.67
Total 30.27 26.49
deduct - Reserve for Bad Debt (27.97) (19.66)
Receivable - Net 2.30 6.83
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Details on Reserve for bad debt fot hire purchase receivable as at the end of 2006, and 2007

2007
Receivable Aging Receivable Balance Receivable Balance [Rate of Reserve Provision for
Net of Collateral for Bad Debt | Possible Loan Loss
Current 679,910,303.72 135,982,060.74 1% 1,359,820.60
Overdue 1 month 157,269,602.80 31,453,920.56 1% 314,539.20
Overdue 2 - 3 months 134,277,154.38 26,855,430.88 2% 537,108.62
Overdue 4 months 6,764,855.69 1,352,971.14 20% 270,594.23
Overdue 5 months 1,841,328.23 368,265.65 20% 73,653.13
Overdue 6 months 1,463,506.14 292,701.23 20% 58,540.25
Overdue 7 months 2,907,959.86 2,035,571.90 50% 1,017,785.95
Overdue 8 months 4,820,834.86 3,374,584.40 50% 1,687,292.20
Overdue 9 months 1,251,084.57 875,734.00 50% 437,867.00
Overdue 10 months 405,489.82 283,842.87 50% 141,921.44
Overdue 11 months 1,660,509.85 1,162,356.90 50% 581,178.45
Overdue 12 months 1,388,474.06 936,931.83 50% 468,465.94
Total 993,911,067.98 204,974,372.10 6,948,766.99
2006
Receivable Aging Receivable Balance Receivable Balance [Rate of Reserve Provision for
Net of Collateral for Bad Debt | Possible Loan Loss
Current 571,736,615.75 114,347,323.15 1% 1,143,473.23
Overdue 1 month 216,720,927.53 43,344,185.51 1% 433,441.86
Overdue 2 - 3 months 164,591,356.69 32,918,271.34 2% 658,365.42
Overdue 4 months 11,5689,388.13 2,317,877.63 20% 463,575.53
Overdue 5 months 6,005,479.67 1,201,095.93 20% 240,219.19
Overdue 6 months 2,749,5611.37 549,902.27 20% 109,980.45
Overdue 7 months 2,221,928.35 1,655,349.85 50% 777,974.93
Overdue 8 months 1,730,119.85 1,211,083.90 50% 605,541.95
Overdue 9 months 1,593,524.50 1,115,467.15 50% 557,733.58
Overdue 10 months 1,659,701.25 1,091,790.88 50% 545,895.44
Overdue 11 months 1,758,966.77 1,231,276.74 50% 615,638.37
Overdue 12 months 2,890,999.89 2,023,699.92 50% 1,011,849.93
Total 985,148,519.75 202,907,324.27 7,163,389.88
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Details on Reserve for Bad Debt for receivables under litigation and compromising agreement for hire purchase and
receivable with right for redemption end of 2006, and 2007

2007
Receivable Receivable Rate of Provision for
Type of Receivables Balance Balance Net Reserve for Possible Loan
of Collateral Bad Debt Loss
Litigation in Process 25,606,650.28 24,076,378.19 100% 24,076,378.19
Compromised Agreement 4,663,076.28 4,663,076.28 75 -100% 3,890,672.11
Total 30,269,726.56 28,739,454.47 27,976,050.30
2006
Receivable Receivable Rate of Provision for
Type of Receivables Balance Balance Net Reserve for Possible Loan
of Collateral Bad Debt Loss
Litigation in Process 20,821,076.49 14,574,753.55 100% 14,574,753.55
Compromised Agreement 5,669,169.90 5,669,169.90 75 -100% 5,081,748.53
Total 26,490,246.39 20,243,923.45 19,656,502.08

As at December 31, 2007, the company established provision for doubtful account for hire purchase receivables
amounted to Baht 6.95 million, a decrease of Baht 0.21 million or 2.93% comparing to Baht 7.16 million as at December 31,
2006. This was a result of reduction in the hire purchase over 5-month overdue category at the end of 2007 as compared

to end of 2006. Said category of overdue and guarantors are still in contact and payments still being paid in by debtors.

The Company established provision for doubtful account for debtors under litigation and compromising agreement
amounted to Baht 27.97 million at the end of 2007, an increase of Baht 8.31 million or 42.26% as compared to Baht 19.66
million as at the end of 2006. The Company established 100% reserve for such debtors and took legal action along with
follow-up on repossession of vehicle collateral. The repossession process continues to be in effect because the statue of
limitation is 10 years.

 Appropriateness and Adequacy of Reserve for Doubtful Account

The company established reserve for doubtful account at a progressive rates corresponding to the number of days
overdue on hire purchase receivable balance, sale with right of redemption receivables, and receivable balance under litigation
deducted by unearned interest income and collateral value calculated approximately at 30-80% of the remaining receivables.
The provision is made with due consideration for the probability of repayment from debtor as well as value of collateral
disposal. In addition, the company assesses capability of payment on a case by case basis for account past due over 6
installments, debtor under litigation, past due over 1 installment for sale with right of redemption, and past due over 12
months for debtor under compromising agreement. The provision for possible loan loss currently utilized by the Company is

considered appropriate, adequate, and efficient.

ANNUAL REPORT 2007 93




@ uSy¥n M:IuBaNWINIBEFEBY 91AR (UNIGU)

94

o Asset Quality Ratio

The ratio of reserve for doubtful account over gross receivable deducted by unearned interest income, debtors under
sale with right of redemption, debtors under litigation, and compromising agreement, and other receivables was 2.53% in
2008, 3.48%, in 2007. The increase in said ratio was a result of the special provisioning for debtors under litigation and other
receivables considered on a case by case basis. The Company recognizes such risks and has follow-up on installment
collection closely and attempted to accelerate recovery with all possible means to achieve speedily and for the highest
amount possible. Nonetheless considering the prospect of debt recovery, disposal of repossessed asset, the company
believes the current provisioning policy for doubtful debt is adequate.

The company recorded the ratio of Non-Performing Loan to Total Receivable of 4.77% in 2006, and 4.52% in 2007.
The ratio decreased as a result of the accelerated collection measures resulted in the reduction of the over 5-month overdue
balance category. The reduction in compromising agreement receivable was a result of write-off. During the year 2005, 2006,
and 2007 the ratio of bad debt to total receivable was 0.18, 1.25, and 2.23% respectively. The rise in the ratio during 2007
was because the company was not able to arrange for repayment from the borrower or the guarantor, or legal process has

been exhausted even though the repossession process remains in effect.

Total liabilities decreased from Baht 783.56 million to Baht 670.15 million and further declined to Baht 632.81 million
in 2005, 2006, and 2007 respectively, a decrease of 14.47% during 2006, and decrease of 5.57% in 2007. The decrease in
liabilities during 2007 resulted from the lower usage on overdraft facility, and repayment of short term debt because credit
extension was not fully in effect. Short term and long term debt (including current portion of long term debt) amounted to
Baht 728.73 million, and 598.67 million in 2005, 2006, and declined to Baht 595.84 million at the end of 2007.

In sourcing for funding, the Company realized the continuing rising trend of interest rate in the future. The Company
has increased the proportion of fixed rate debt to mitigate interest rate risks. At present the Company’s loan borrowing tenor
averaged 4 years

As at the end of 2005, 2006, and 2007, Debt to Equity Ration of the company stood at 1.73, 1.48 and 1.42

respectively. The reduction of the ratio at the end of 2007 was a result of lower amount of funding required as mentioned

earlier.

o Shareholders’ Equity

Shareholders’ Equity during 2005, 2006, and 2007 was Baht 452.61, 452.94, and 444.12 million respectively. Return
on Equity from 2005 to 2007 was 4.27%, 3.70% and (1.97%) respectively. Return on Equity during 2007 was negative
resulted from bad debt written-off and substantial provision for doubtful account during the year.

Dividend declared from operating profit from 2005 to 2007 was as follows :

On September 7, 2005, Baht 8.20 million or at the rate of Baht 0.02 per share was dividend declared from operating
profit during the first 6-month period of 2005.

On April 21, 2006, Baht 8.2 million or at the rate of Baht 0.02 per share was dividend declared from operating profit
during the latter 6-month period of 2005.

On December 8, 2006, Baht 8.2 million or the rate of Baht 0.02 per share was dividend declared from operating profit
during the 9 months period of 2006.

Dividend was suspended during 2007.
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Net cash available from operations during 2006 was positive Baht 119.08 million. The amount was Baht 57.44 million
during 2007. The decline was a result of Baht 23.33 million bad debt written-off, additional provisioning for doubtful accounts
amounting to Baht 8.49 million, and 35.87 million incremental hire purchase businesses.

Net cash from investment activities during 2006 was positive Baht 3.70 million. It was negative Baht 8.47 million
during 2007 as a result of acquisition of motor vehicles and development of operational software.

Net cash from financing activity was negative Bath 124.29 million during 2006, and negative Baht 37.56 million during
2007 because of partial bill of exchange retirement and reduction in overdraft usage

e Sources and Application of Fund

Sources of fund of the company were mainly from domestic financial institution borrowing, and equity. As a matter

of policy the company intends to seek an increasing amount of funding from financial institution at a low rate of interest.

Sources of fund as at the end of December 31, 2005, 2006, and 2007 were as follow :

2007 2006 2005
Baht Million |Peercent | Baht Million | Peercent | Baht Million | Peercent

Shareholders’ Equity 444.23 4175 452.94 40.79 452.61 37.16
Borrowing

- Overdraft+Loan from Financial Institutions 24.08 2.26 58.82 5.30 36.64 3.01

- Current Portion of Long Term Debt 259.41 24.38 263.87 23.76 288.32 23.67

- Other Short Term Debt 4423 416 53.75 4.84 79.54 6.53

- Long Term Debt 292.20 27.46 281.05 25.31 360.87 29.63

Total Borrowing 619.92 58.25 657.49 59.21 765.37 62.84

Grand Total 1,064.15 100.00 1,110.43 100.00 1,217.98 100.00

Borrowing as at December 31, 2007 was Baht 619.92 million with scheduled repayment as follow :

Repayment Schedule Baht Million
Within 1 Year * 327.72
More than 1 and up to 2 Year 196.43
More than 2 and up to 3 Year 94.83
More than 3 and up to 4 Year 0.94
Total 619.92

Note : * Overdraft, current portion of long term debt, and short term debt
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Considering the hire purchase portfolio deducting past due accounts over 5 moths, and accounts under litigation,

installment receivables by maturity is as follow :

Installment Receivable Baht Million
Within 1 Year * 458.18
More than 1 and up to 2 Year 336.86
More than 2 and up to 3 Year 193.26
More than 3 Year 143.75
Total 1,132.05

As at December 31, 2007, total liabilities due within one year (including overdraft and short term loan) amounted to
Baht 327.72 million, due over one year and up to two years amounted to Bath 196.43 million. Comparing with installment due
for collection within one year of Baht 458.18 million, and due over one year and up to two years of Baht 336.86 million, the

Company has adequate funding sources to meet its debt obligation during the said periods.

8. Other Information

Dividend Declared

During 2007 the Company suspended dividend declared. At the General Shareholders’ Meeting 1/2550 dated April 10,
2007, the meeting approved dividend declared from operating profit of 2006 amounted to Baht 0.02 per share or Baht 8.2
million. However interim dividend has already been paid out (on December 8, 2006 as approved by resolution passes at the
Board Meeting 6/2549 dated November 10, 2006) at the rate of Baht 0.02 per share or Baht 8.2 million, the amount of which

was the same or 49% of net profit. There was no additional dividend declared during 2007.
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1. Details related to Directors, Management, and individuals with

controlling interests in the Company

1. Mr. Preecha Veerapong

Chairman of the Board, and Authorized Director

Age 75 years old

Proportion of Shares Held 18.97%

Family relationship with

Executive Directors/Other Directors Father to Mr. Danucha Veerapong
Father to Mr. Prapakorn Veerapong
Relative of Mrs. Duangrat Jaengmongkol

Educational Background - Professional training via Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)’s
Director Accreditation Program ( DAP )

Work Experiences 2003 - Present  Eastern Commercial Leasing PLC
2002 - Present  Director, Hi Tech Land (2002) Co., Ltd.
1989 - Present  Director, Prasartporn Junior Co., Ltd.
198 - Present Director, Prapakorn Business Co., Ltd.
1979 - Present  Director, Eastern Estate Co., Ltd.
1971 - Present ~ Chairman of the Board, Thai Preeda Industry Co., Ltd.

2. Mr. Danucha Veerapong

Chairman of the Executive Committee, and Authorized Director
Age 38 years old
Proportion of Shares Held 9.25%
Family relationship with
Executive Directors/Other Directors Son to Mr. Preecha Veerapong
Elder brother to Mr. Prapakorn Veerapong
And Relative of Mrs. Duangrat Jaengmongkol
Educational Background - Master of Business Administration, Major in Marketing,
University of Hartford Connecticut, U.S.A.
- Bachelor of Business Administration, Major in
Economic / Finance, Bentley College, Massachusettes, U.S.A.
- Professional training of Thai Institute of Directors on the
Director Accreditation Program ( DAP )
Work Experiences 2003 - Present  Eastern Commercial Leasing PLC
2002 - 2003 Director of Sales and Services, the Bank of Asia PLC
2002 - Present  Director, Hi-Tech Land (2002) Co., Ltd.
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3. Mr. Prapakorn Veerapong

Managing Director and Authorized Director
Age 37 years old
Proportion of Shares Held 9.35%
Family relationship with
Executive Directors/other Directors  Son to Mr. Preecha Veerapong
Younger brother to Mr. Danucha Veerapong
And Relative of Mrs. Duangrat Jaengmongkol
Educational Background - Master of Business Administration, Major in International Trade,
Boston University
- Bachelor of Business Administration, Major in Finance,
University of Hartford Connecticut, U.S.A.
- Professional training of Thai Institute of Directors on
the Director Accreditation Program (DAP)

Work Experiences 2003 - Present Eastern Commercial Leasing PLC
2003 - Present Director, Thai Preda Industry Co., Ltd.
2003 - Present Director, Eastern Estate Co., Ltd.
2003 - Present Director, Prapakorn Business Co., Ltd.
2003 - Present Director, Prasartporn Junior Co., Ltd.

2002 - Present Director, Hi-Tech Land (2002) Co., Ltd.
1997 - Present Chairman of the Board, VSales Trading (Thailand) Co., Ltd.

4. Mrs. Duangrat Jaengmongkol

Senior Deputy Managing Director, and Authorized Director
Age 60 years old
Proportion of Shares Held 0.39 %
Family relationship with
Executive Directors/other Directors  Relative to Mr. Preecha Veerapong
Relative to Mr. Danucha Veerapong
And Relative to Mr. Prapakorn Veerapong
Educational Background - Bachelor of Accountancy, Thamasart University
- Bachelor of Law, Thamasart University
- Mini Master of Management, National Institute of
Development and Administration (NIDA)
- Professional training of Thai Institute of Directors on
the Director Accreditation Program (DAP)
- Professional training of Thai Institute of Directors on
the Director Certification Program (DCP)
Work Experiences 2003 - Present  Eastern Commercial Leasing PLC
1984 - 2003 Managing Director,
Eastern Commercial Leasing Company Limited
(prior to the merger)
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5. Miss Areechit Sasiprapa

Director
Age 61 years old
Proportion of Shares Held None

Family relationship with
Executive Directors /other Directors None
Educational Background - Bachelor of Business Administration, Armstrong Business College
- Mini MBA, Chulalongkorn University
- Accounting for Executive Seminar at Chulalongkorn University
- Professional training of Thai Institute of Directors on
the Director Accreditation Program (DAP)
Work Experiences Branch Manager, Bank of Asia PLC
Director, Syndome Electronics Industry Co., Ltd
Director, Thai T.V.Broadcasting Co., Ltd
Director, Milford Group Hotel Co., Ltd.

6. Mr. Pravit Phongsopa

Director
Age 40 years old
Proportion of Shares Held 3.24%

Family relationship with
Executive Directors /other Directors None
Educational Background - Master of Engineering, Mechanical Engineering, Chulalongkorn University
- Bachelor of Engineering, Mechanical Engineering, Chulalongkorn University
- Professional training at Business and Community Leader Development Foundation
- Professional training of Thai Institute of Directors on
the Director Accreditation Program (DAP)
Work Experiences 2002 - Present  Chairman of the Board, Prachakij Group of Companies.
1995 - 2002 Executive Director, Prachakij MotorSales Co., Ltd.

7. Mr. Chinsuk Viravan

Chairman of the Audit Committee
Age 65 years old
Proportion of Shares Held None
Family relationship with
Executive Directors /other Directors None
Educational Background - Master of Economics, University of Oklahoma
- Bachelor of Commerce, Chulalongkorn University
- Graduate member,Thai Institute of Directors (I0D)
- Professional training of Thai Institute of Directors on
the Director Certification Program (DCP)
Audit Committee Program (ACP)
Work Experiences 2005 - Present  Eastern Commercial Leasing PLC
1991 - 2004: Director & President, Advisor of the Board of
Directors Small Industry Credit Guarantee Corperation.
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8. Police Lieutenant General Amporn Charuchinda

Audit Committee Member
Age 60 years old
Proportion of Shares Held None
Family relationship with
Executive Directors /other Directors None
Educational Background - Master of Engineering, Major in Nuclear Technology, Chulalongkorn University
- Bachelor of Science, Major in Physics, Chulalongkorn University
- Professional training of Thai Institute of Directors on the
Directors Accreditation Program (DAP)
Audit Committee Program (ACP)
Work Experiences 2003 - Present  Eastern Commercial Leasing PLC
2007 - Present ~ Commander, Office of Police Forensic Science

2001 - 2007 Police Assistant Commander, National Police Administration
9. Mr. Phiphat Pornsuwan
Audit Committee Member
Age 60 years old
Proportion of Shares Held 0.06 %

Family relationship with
Executive Directors /other Directors None
Educational Background - Master of Business Administration, Texas A & | University
- Bachelor of Commerce, Major in Statistics, Chulalongkorn University
- National Defense College Class 4010
- Professional training of Thai Institute of Directors on the
Directors Accreditation Program (DAP)
Director Certification Program (DCP)
Work Experiences 2003 - Present  Eastern Commercial Leasing PLC
1974 - 2002 Assistant Managing Director, Bank of Asia PLC

10. Mr. Somchai Watthanasuphasirikul

Assistant Managing Director - Marketing
Age 59 years old
Proportion of Shares Held None
Family relationship with
Executive Directors /other Directors None
Educational Background - Diploma in Aviation, Nitibhon Vocational School
Work Experiences 2007 - Present  Assistant Managing Director
Eastern Commercial Leasing PLC
2003 - 2006 Senior Credit Manager, Eastern Commercial Leasing PLC
1985 - 2003 Senior Credit Manager, Eastern Commercial Leasing Co., Ltd.
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. Mr. Suwat Rojanasoontra

12

Assistant Managing Director - Operation
Age 34 years old
Proportion of Shares Held None
Family relationship with

Executive Directors / other Directors None
Educational Background -
2007 - Present
2003 - 2006
2002 - 2003

2000-2002

Work Experiences

. Mrs. Charatsang Yuampai

Bachelor of Accountancy, Bangkok University
Assistant MD - perations,Eastern Commercial Leasing PLC

Operation Manager, Eastern Commercial Leasing PLC

Operation Manager, Eastern Commercial Leasing Co., Ltd.

Credit Analysis Manager, Professional Leasing Co., Ltd.

Assistant Managing Director - Risk Analysis and Planning

Age 36 years old

Proportion of Shares Held None

Family relationship with

Executive Directors / other Directors None

Educational Background -
Ramkamhaeng Uni

Work Experiences 2007 - Presen

Bachelor of Business Administration, Major in Finance and Banking,

versity
Assistant MD - Risk Analysis and Planning

Eastern Commercial Leasing PLC

2003 - 2006 Business Development Manager
Eastern Commercial Leasing PLC
2001 - 2003 Finance Supervisor, Professional Leasing Co., Ltd.
13. Miss Manasanant Banjerdkit
Finance Manager
Age 43 years old
Proportion of Shares Held None

Family relationship with
Executive Directors /other Directors None
Educational Background -

Bachelor of Accounting - Major in Finance Accounting,

University of Thai Chamber of Commerce

2001 - Present
1992 - 2000

Work Experiences

Eastern Commercial Leasing Public Company
Eastern Finance and Securities (1991) Company Limited
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Auditor’s Report

To The Shareholders of EASTERN COMMERCIAL LEASING PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

| have audited the balance sheets of EASTERN COMMERCIAL LEASING PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED as at December
31, 2007, the related of statements of income, statements of changes in shareholders’ equity and statements of cash flows
for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management as to their
correctness and completeness of the presentation. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on my audits. The financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2006 were audited by the other auditor in the

same office whose report date February 1, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion on those statements.

| conducted my audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that |
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statements presentation. | believe that my audit provides a reasonable basis for my

opinion.

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of EASTERN COMMERCIAL LEASING PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED as at December 31, 2007 and the results of its
operations and cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

Office of D I A International Auditing

évjr‘*‘f&\m Bl b T

(Miss Somdintana Pholhirunrat)

C.P.A. Thailand Registration No. 5599

February 25, 2008
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Balance Sheets

EASTERN COMMERCIAL LEASING PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2007 AND 2006

Baht
Assets Note 2007 2006
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4 17,164,125.52 5,759,834.21
Hire purchase agreement receivables within 1 year - net 5 416,586,456.17 444,058,286.86
Sale with right of redemption agreement receivables - net 6 22,127,887.80 91,373,870.00
Properties foreclosed - net 7 9,888,240.16 6,238,405.65
Other current assets 8 11,108,569.87 15,302,174.62
Total current assets 476,875,279.52 562,732,571.34
Non-current assets
Hire purchase agreement receivables due over 1 year - net 5 570,375,844.82 533,926,843.01
Property, plant and equipment - net 9 26,526,017.64 23,622,908.58
Deposit at bank with commitment 10 3,127,214.60 2,786,786.40
Other non-current assets 28,400.00 28,400.00
Total non-current assets 600,057,477.06 560,364,937.99
Total assets 1,076,932,756.58 1,123,097,509.33

Notes to financial statements are parts of these financial statements.
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Balance Sheets (Cont.)

EASTERN COMMERCIAL LEASING PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2007 AND 2006

Baht
Liabilities and shareholders’ equity Note 2007 2006
Current liabilities
Bank overdrafts and loans from financial institutions 1 24,083,099.08 58,821,352.23
Current portion of long-term debt 14 259,411,410.00 263,867,790.00
Short - term loans from related persons 12 34,399,329.59 34,203,223.66
Other short - term loans 13 9,828,379.88 19,544,699.27
Advance received 6,665,730.18 5,456,762.84
Other current liabilities 6,223,246.01 7,209,174.24
Total current liabilities 340,611,194.74 389,103,002.24
Non-current liabilities
Long-term loans 14 292,202,500.00 281,049,910.00
Total non-current liabilities 292,202,500.00 281,049,910.00
Total liabilities 632,813,694.74 670,152,912.24
Shareholders’ equity
Share capital
Authorized share capital
410,000,000 common shares of Baht 1.00 each 410,000,000.00 410,000,000.00
Issued and paid - up share capital
410,000,000 common shares of Baht 1.00 each 410,000,000.00 410,000,000.00
Paid-in capital
Premium on common share 21,508,713.28 21,508,713.28
Retained earnings
Appropriated
Legal reserve 15 7,500,990.88 7,286,250.17
Unappropriated 5,109,357.68 14,149,633.64

Total shareholders’ equity

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

Notes to financial statements are parts of these financial statements.

444,119,061.84

452,944,597.09

1,076,932,756.58

1,123,097,509.33
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Statements of Income

EASTERN COMMERCIAL LEASING PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007 AND 2006
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Note 2007 2006
Revenues
Realized selling interest under hire purchase agreement 103,867,450.33 112,404,368.27
Interest income under sale with right of redemption agreement 9,107,495.02 13,561,194.50
Other income
Fee and services income 12,168,734.94 12,114,126.19
Others 13,148,249.11 11,588,426.69
Total revenues 138,291,929.40 149,668,115.65
Expenses
Expenses on borrowings 36,729,620.67 44,759,368.93
Operating and administrative expenses 73,415,811.43 68,780,195.64
Directors’ remuneration 18 1,655,000.00 1,530,000.00
Bad debt and doubtful accounts 31,822,399.22 12,592,556.71
Total expenses 143,622,831.32 127,662,121.28
Profit (Loss) before income tax (5,330,901.92) 22,005,994.37
Income tax (3,494,633.33) (5,271,312.28)
Net profit (loss) (8,825,5635.25) 16,734,682.09
Basic earnings per share
Net profit (loss) 3.8 (0.0215) 0.0408
Number of weighted average of common shares (shares) 410,000,000 410,000,000

Notes to financial statements are parts of these financial statements.
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Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity

EASTERN COMMERCIAL LEASING PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007 AND 2006

Baht
Note Issued and  Premium on Retained earnings (Deficit) Total
paid - up share capital
Appropriated Unappropriated
share capital
Beginning balance as at January 1, 2006 410,000,000.00  21,508,713.28  6,449,516.07  14,6561,685.65 452,609,915.00
Net profit for the year 0.00 0.00 0.00 16,734,682.09 16,734,682.09
Appropriated for legal reserve 15 0.00 0.00 836,734.10 (836,734.10) 0.00
Dividend paid 16 0.00 0.00 0.00 (16,400,000.00) (16,400,000.00)
Ending balance as at December 31, 2006 410,000,000.00  21,508,713.28  7,286,250.17  14,149,633.64 452,944,597.09
Net loss for the year 0.00 0.00 0.00 (8,825,535.25) (8,825,535.25)
Appropriated for legal reserve 15 0.00 0.00 214,740.71 (214,740.71) 0.00
Ending balance as at December 31, 2007 410,000,000.00 21,508,713.28  7,500,990.88  5,109,357.68 444,119,061.84

Notes to financial statements are parts of these financial statements.
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Statements of Cash Flows

EASTERN COMMERCIAL LEASING PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007 AND 2006

uSy¥n M:IuBaNWINIBEFEBY 91AR (UNIGU)

Baht
2007 2006
Cash flows from operating activities
Net profit (loss) (8,825,535.25) 16,734,682.09
Adjustments to net profit to cash receipt (disbursement) from operations
Depreciation 4,889,299.91 4,310,735.19
Bad debt and doubtful accounts 31,822,399.22 12,592,556.71
(Gain) Loss on sales of assets (684,066.69) (1,850,963.55)
Loss from sales of properties foreclosed 11,465,321.07 15,718,966.69
(Gain) Loss from impairment of properties foreclosed 1,130,485.72 1,494,738.68
Gain (Loss) from operation before changes in parts of
operating assets and liabilities 39,797,903.98 49,000,715.81
(Increase) Decrease in changes in parts of operating assets
Hire purchase agreement receivable (35,872,034.09) 89,237,218.72
Sale with right of redemption receivables 65,899,514.00 (28,570,000.00)
Properties foreclosed (12,223,548.24) 16,413,386.62
Other current assets (387,463.30) (1,488,359.53)
Increase (Decrcase) in changes in parts of operating liabilities
Advance received 1,208,967.34 (3,140,922.41)
Other current liabilities (985,928.23) (2,374,243.83)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 57,437,411.46 119,077,795.38

Notes to financial statements are parts of these financial statements.
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Statements of Cash Flows (Cont.)

EASTERN COMMERCIAL LEASING PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007 AND 2006

2007 2006
Cash flows from investing activities
Cash received from sales of equipment 2,5674,299.07 1,871,358.88
Cash paid for purchase of property, plant and equipment (10,704,734.41) (2,739,825.50)
(Increase) Decrease in deposit at bank with commitment (340,428.20) 4,569,525.80
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (8,470,863.54) 3,701,059.18

Cash flows from financing activities - increase (decrease)
Bank overdrafts and loans from financial institutions
Other short-term loans
Long-term loans
Dividend paid

Net cash provided by (used in) financial activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, as at January 1

Cash and cash equivalents, as at December 31

Additional disclosure of cash flows information
Cash paid during the period
Income tax

Interest expenses

wngimsznataunisRuiy uniiaessunisiull

(34,738,253.15)

22,176,524.68

(9,5620,213.46) (25,797,842.62)
6,696,210.00 (104,271,857 .45)
0.00 (16,400,000.00)
(37,562,256.61) (124,293,175.39)
11,404,291.31 (1,5614,320.83)
5,759,834.21 7,274,155.04
17,164,125.52 5,759,834.21
3,672,265.52 8,713,374.74
37,216,048.64 47,896,635.72
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Notes to Financial Statements

EASTERN COMMERCIAL LEASING PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2007 AND 2006

1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION BASIS

These financial statements have been presented in accordance with the notification of the Department of Business
Development dated September 14, 2001 regarding the abbreviate items which must be shown in the financial statements for
the public company limited and prepared in conformity with the generally accepted accounting principles as prescribed by the
Accounting Professions Act B.E. 2547,

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except as transaction disclosed in
related accounting policy.

2. NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS ISSUANCE

In accordance with the notification No. 9/2550, N0.38/2550 and No0.62/2550 issued by the Federation of Accounting
Professions, pertaining to the Accounting Standards announced in the Government Gazette, intention to follow the revised
2007 Accounting Standards in stead of the old Accounting Standards which were cancelled as following: The revised

Accounting Standards are not operative yet in the current year.
2.1 The revised Accounting Standards became effective in the current year

No. 44 “Consolidated Financial Statements and Separate Financial Statements”
No. 45 “Investments in Associates”
No. 46 “Interests in Joint Venture”

Those three Accounting Standards are required to adopt for the financial statements beginning in or after January 1,
2007 onwards. However, the Company ‘s business has not connected with those three Accounting Standards.

2.2 The revised Accounting Standards are not operative yet in the current year

No. 25 “Cash Flows Statements”

No. 29 “Leases”

No. 31 “Inventories”

No. 33 “Borrowing Costs”

No. 35 “Presentation of Financial Statements”

No. 39 “Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Fundamental Errors”
No. 41 “Interim Financial Reporting”

No. 43 “Business Combinations”

No. 49 “Construction Contracts”

No. 51 “Intangible assets”

Those ten Accounting Standards are required to adopt for the financial statements beginning in or after January 1,
2008 onwards. The Company’s management deems that the adoption of those Accounting Standards are not materially
affected to the financial statements in year starting.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
3.1 Income and Expenses Recognition

3.1.1 Revenues and expenditures are recognized on an accrual basis.

3.1.2  The Company recognized hire purchase interest income as unrealized interest and recognized on the sum of
the years digits method. Revenues from installments will be stopped to recognize if the overdue installments
exceeding 4 months which different from the accounting method of revenues recognition and allowance for
doubtful accounts provision for consumer finance as requirement of the Securities and Exchange Commission
and the Institute of Certified Accountants and Auditors of Thailand (currently named the Federation of Account-
ing Professions) that required the Company to stop revenue recognition from the overdue payment of receiv-
ables exceeding 3 installments in accordance with the notification no. KorLorTor. ChorSor. (Wor) 2/2004 dated
April 30, 2004. Since the past receivables data as at December 31, 2003, 2004, 2005 and 2006 there are 95%
of overdue receivables exceeding 4 months could repay such debts. So, as at December 31, 2007 and 2006,
the Company has overdue payment receivable exceeding 3 installments and still recognize income in the
amount of Baht 21,312,854.24 and Baht 35,966,869.66, respectively. If the Company recognized income on
the requirement basis, revenue and receivables of the Company will be reduced by Baht 147,399.00 and
Baht 332,080.29, respectively.

3.1.3  The Company recognized interest income under sale with right of redemption agreement receivables on an
accrual basis.

3.2 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are cash on hand and all type of deposit at banks excluding deposit which held to maturity
and short-term highly liquid investments that are subject to insignificant risk to change in value.

3.3 Allowance for doubtful accounts

The Company provided the allowance for doubtful accounts based on receivables aging report which calculated from
receivables under hire purchase agreement, sale with right of redemption agreement and receivables under lawsuit deducted
by deferred hire purchase interest and collaterals. The collaterals are calculated from the credit value at the rate of 30% - 80%
by considering the comparative of repayable opportunity received from receivables and selling of collaterals. In additon, the
Company will consider the repayment ability of each receivables for overdue receivables exceeding six months, receivable
under sale with right of redemption agreement overdue exceeding one month and receivables under debt compromise
agreement overdue exceeding twelve months.

The basis of provision of allowance for doubtful accounts are as follows :

%
Less Deferred hire purchase interest and collaterals
Normal receivable and overdue 1 month 1
Overdue 2 - 3 months 2
Overdue 4 - 6 months 20
Overdue 7 - 12 months 50
Overdue 12 months 100

The above policy are determined for overdue payment exceeding 3 installments which do not conform with the
allowance for doubtful accounts provision for consumer finance as requirement of the Securities and Exchange Commission
and the Institute of Certified Accountants and Auditors of Thailand (currently named the Federation of Accounting Professions)
that required the Company to provide the allowance for doubtful accounts in whole amount without collaterals deducting.
Since the Company provided the allowance for doubtful accounts from the actual bad debt statistics in the past 2-3 years,
therefore, the yearly actual bad debt are occurred approximately 75 - 80% of provided doubtful accounts.
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Receivables under debt compromise agreement after deduction by deferred hire purchase interest without collaterals
deduction were provided allowance for doubtful accounts equal to 75 - 100% since the Company has seized the collaterals
from such receivables. The Company will have the yearly actual bad debt approximately 85 - 90% of provided doubtful
accounts from the statistics in the past 2 - 3 years.

3.4 Property, plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation except land are stated at cost. Impairment of
assets will be provided (if any).

The Company depreciated all type of assets on over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows :

Number of years

Building and improvement 20
Furniture, fixture and office equipment 3-5
Vehicles 5

3.5 Impairment of assets

The Company has considered the impairment of assets on property, plant and equipment, investment, properties
foreclosed and other intangible assets whenever events or changes indicate that the recoverable value of the asset is lower
than the book value. Loss from impairment of asset will be recognized in the statements of income. The Company will
reverse the impairment loss whenever there is an indication that there is no longer impairment or reduction in impairment as
“other income”.

Recoverable value means net selling price of the asset or its utilization value whichever is higher. The Company will
consider the impairment for each asset item or each asset unit generating cash flow, whichever is practical.

3.6  Properties foreclosed

Properties foreclosed which seized from defaulting receivable are valued by the balance of receivable at the lower of
net book value or net realizable value from selling assets. Net realizable value are evaluated by comparing with the used car
price in the market and the past selling price which appraised by the Company’s appraisal management.

3.7 Income tax

The Company records corporate income tax to be paid as expenses in each period based on the conditions described
in the Revenue Code.

3.8 Basic earnings per share

Earnings (Loss) per share as presented in the statements of income is the basic earnings (loss) per share which is
determined by dividing the net profit (loss) for the year by the weighted average number of common shares issued and
paid - up during the year.

3.9 Use of accounting estimates

Preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles required the management
to make several estimation and assumption which affect the reported amounts in the financial statements and disclosures in
notes to financial statements. Consequent actual results may differ from those estimates.

3.10 Provision for liabilities

The Company recognizes a provision for liabilities when an entity has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of a past event. It is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation. Expenditure is required to settle a provision, is expected to be reimbursed when
it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received.
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4. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash on hand
Current accounts

Savings deposit

Total

5. HIRE PURCHASE AGREEMENT RECEIVABLE - NET

@

Baht
2007 2006
270,989.50 335,840.25
10,456,924.46 5,214,598.56
6,436,211.56 209,395.40
17,164,125.52 5,759,834.21

Due within 1 year

Due over 1 year

Baht Baht
2007 2006 2007 2006
Hire purchase agreement receivable 506,020,252.00 523,210,464.41 644,982,548.81 604,143,874.16
Less Unrealized interest income (85,468,476.52) (76,548,247.57) (71,623,256.31) (65,657,571.25)
Less Allowance for doubtful accounts (3,965,319.31) (2,603,929.98) (2,983,447.68) (4,559,459.90)
Hire purchase agreement receivable - net 416,586,456.17 444,058,286.86 570,375,844.82 533,926,843.01
Overdue receivables and allowance for doubtful accounts
Number  Receivables less Receivables for % of allowance  Allowance
of by unrealized provide allowance for doubtful for doubtful
receivable interest for doubtful accounts  accounts accounts

As at December 31, 2007
Undue - 1 month 3,918 837,179,906.52 167,435,981.30 1% 1,674,359.80
Overdue 2 - 3 months 847 134,277,154.38 26,855,430.88 2% 537,108.62
Overdue 4 - 6 months 62 10,069,690.06 2,013,938.02 20% 402,787.61
Overdue 7 - 12 months 40 12,384,317.02 8,669,021.90 50% 4,334,510.96

Total 993,911,067.98 204,974,372.10 6,948,766.99
As at December 31, 2006
Undue - 1 month 3,861 788,457,543.28 157,691,508.66 1% 1,576,915.08
Overdue 2 - 3 months 959 164,591,356.69 32,918,271.34 2% 658,365.42
Overdue 4 - 6 months 97 20,344,379.17 4,068,875.83 20% 813,775.17
Overdue 7 - 12 months 43 11,755,240.61 8,228,668.43 50% 4,114,334.21

Total 985,148,519.75 202,907,324.26 7,163,389.88

As at December 31, 2007 and 2006, parts of hire purchase receivables amount of Baht 821,440,390.80 and Baht
878,912,799.17, respectively were used as collateral for bank overdrafts and loans from a bank as stated in notes 11 and 14.
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6. SALE WITH RIGHT OF REDEMPTION AGREEMENT RECEIVABLES
Baht
2007 2006
Sale with right of redemption agreement receivables 23,615,486.00 92,515,000.00
Less Allowance for doubtful accounts (1,487,598.20) (1,141,130.00)

Sale with right of redemption agreement receivables - net

22,127,887.80

91,373,870.00

As at December 31, 2007, the Company has loans receivable to 12 individuals by entering into sale with right of
redemption agreement with the agreement period of 1 - 6 months at the interest rate of 15-21% per annum (as at December
31, 2006, 18 individuals).

7. PROPERTIES FORECLOSED - NET
2007 2006
Properties foreclosed 12,643,162.05 7,862,841.82
Less Provision for impairment - properties forclosed (2,754,921.89) (1,624,436.17)
Properties foreclosed - net 9,888,240.16 6,238,405.65
8. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
2007 2006
Receivables under lawsuit 25,606,650.28 20,821,076.49
Less Allowance for doubtful accounts (24,076,378.19) (14,574,753.55)
Net 1,530,272.09 6,246,322.94
Receivables under debt compromise agreement 4,663,076.28 5,669,169.90
Less Allowance for doubtful accounts (3,890,672.11) (5,081,748.53)
Net 772,404.17 587,421.37
Receivables - net 2,302,676.26 6,833,744.31
Accrued insurance premium discount income 854,299.53 788,371.56
Others 8,001,594.08 7,680,058.75
Less Allowance for doubtful accounts (50,000.00) 0.00

Total

11,108,569.87

15,302,174.62

114 $790UUS:970 m&eo




Eastern Commercial Leasing Public Company Limited

Overdue receivables under lawsuit and allowance for doubtful accounts.

Receivable after unrealized

interest income 26 62 25,606,650.28 20,821,076.49
Receivable for provide allowance

for doubtful accounts 24,076,378.19 14,574,753.55
% of allowance for doubtful accounts 100% 100%

Allowance for doubtful accounts 24,076,378.19 14,574,753.55

Overdue receivable under debt compromise agreement and allowance for doubtful accounts as at December 31, 2007.

Undue - 3 months 3 1,257,372.50 1,257,372.50 75% 943,029.38
Overdue 6 months 3 790,644.76 790,644.76 75% 592,983.57
Overdue 9 months 3 1,041,599.44 1,041,599.44 75% 781,199.58
Overdue 13 months onwards 5 1,573,459.58 1,573,459.58 100% 1,573,459.58

Total 4,663,076.28 4,663,076.28 3,890,672.11

Overdue receivable under debt compromise agreement and allowance for doubtful accounts as at December 31, 2006.

Undue - 3 months 5 885,337.12 885,337.12 75% 664,002.84
Overdue 7 months 1 227,414.00 227,414.00 75% 170,560.50
Overdue 8 months 2 211,420.52 211,420.52 75% 158,565.39
Overdue 10 months 2 1,025,513.85 1,025,513.85 75% 769,135.39
Overdue 15 months onwards 10 3,319,484.41 3,319,484.41 100% 3,319,484 .41

Total 5,669,169.90 5,669,169.90 5,081,748.53
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December 31, 2006 Increase Disposal (transfer) December 31, 2007
Cost :-
Land 7,324,162.50 0.00 0.00 7,324,162.50
Building 9,697,159.82 0.00 0.00 9,697,159.82
Building improvement 0.00 1,043,801.26 0.00 1,043,801.26
Office decoration 643,538.36 27,009.07 0.00 670,547.43
Office equipment 11,156,657.67 570,800.31 616,571.73 11,110,886.25
Office furniture 917,339.57 5,140.19 3,000.00 919,479.76
Vehicles 12,872,554.87 9,670,829.37 8,072,101.09 14,471,283.15
Construction in progress 600,000.00 339,175.26 939,175.26 0.00
Total 43,111,412.79 11,656,755.46 9,630,848.08 45,137,320.17
Accumulated depreciation :-
Building 2,240,513.06 479,858.16 0.00 2,720,371.22
Building improvement 0.00 115,858.48 0.00 115,858.48
Office decoration 499,886.06 85,013.78 0.00 584,899.84
Office equipment 9,159,956.17 1,037,000.25 599,718.82 9,597,237.60
Office furniture 895,332.10 19,195.94 2,999.00 911,529.04
Vehicles 6,692,816.82 3,152,373.30 5,163,783.77 4,681,406.35
Total 19,488,504.21 4,889,299.91 5,766,501.59 18,611,302.53
Balance 23,622,908.58 26,526,017.64
Depreciation : For the year ended December 31, 2007 was Baht 4,889,299.91

For the year ended December 31, 2006 was Baht 4,310,735.19

As at December 31, 2007, the Company has fixed assets at cost of Baht 8,290,324.68 and net book value of Baht 484
which were fully depreciated but are still being operated (as at December 31, 2006, cost of Baht 5,990,362.07 and net book
value of Baht 424).

Land and construction were mortgaged as guarantee for bank overdrafts and long-term loans from a bank as mentioned
in notes 11 and 14.

10. DEPOSIT AT BANK WITH COMMITMENT

As at December 31, 2007, fixed deposit of Baht 3,127,214.60 is used as guarantee for loans from bank and electricity
usage as mentioned in notes 14 and 19 (as at December 31, 2006 amount of Baht 2,786,786.40).

11. BANK OVERDRAFTS AND LOANS FROM FINANCIAL INSTITUTION

116

Baht
2007 2006
Bank overdrafts 4,083,099.08 12,821,352.23
Loans from bank - promissory notes 20,000,000.00 46,000,000.00
Total 24,083,099.08 58,821,352.23
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12.

As at December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Company has overdrafts line with 2 banks totalling Baht 45 million guaranteed
by transferring the right on part of hire purchase agreement receivable in note 5, mortgaging land and construction in

note 9 and personal guarantee by the directors without remuneration.

As at December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Company has loans from a local bank by issuing promissory notes at the
interest rate of 3.6 - 6.60% per annum which are due under the term of such notes.

TRANSACTION WITH RELATED PERSONS AND PARTIES

Parts of the Company’s assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses arose from the transactions with related persons.

Such transactions have been concluded on the condition as follows :

12.1 Short-term loans from related person

Prepaid interest

Principal expenses Total
Balance as at December 31, 2006 35,000,000.00 (796,776.34) 34,203,223.66
Increase 70,000,000.00 (1,619,585.42) 68,380,414.58
Decrease (70,000,000.00) 1,815,691.35 (68,184,308.65)
Balance as at December 31, 2007 35,000,000.00 (600,670.41) 34,399,329.59

As at December 31, 2007, the Company has loans from 4 shareholders by issuing bill of exchange in the amount of
Baht 35 million at the interest rate of 4.75% per annum due on May 16, 2008 by pre-deducting interest expenses
in the amount of Baht 600,670.41 (as at December 31, 2006, the amount of Baht 35 million).

12.2 Rental
The Company has entering into lease land agreement in order to use as car parking and lease office premise
agreement for using as branch office from 3 directors of the Company as detailed following :
As at December 31, 2007
Plot Location Area Agreement Period Period Rental/month
1 Bangkok 275 Square wah 3 years August 18, 2006 - August 18, 2009 Baht 40,421.05
2 Cholburi 244.05 Square meter 1 year June 1, 2007 - May 31, 2008 Baht 26,315.79
3 Cholburi 930 Square wah 3 years September 1, 2007 - August 31, 2010 Baht 21,052.64 - 25,473.69
As at December 31, 2006
Plot Location Area Agreement Period Period Rental/month
1 Bangkok 275 Square wah 3 years August 18, 2006 - August 18, 2009 Baht 40,421.05
2 Cholburi 375.89 Square meter 3 years June 1, 2004 - May 31, 2007 Baht 26,315.79 - 29,012.63
3 Cholburi 108 Square wah 1 year December 1, 2005 - November 30, 2006 Baht 3,157.90
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13. OTHER SHORT - TERM LOANS
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(Unit : Baht)
2007 2006
Interest Principal Maturity Interest Principal Maturity
rate rate
Persons 4.75% 10,000,000.00 May 16, 2008 6.25%  20,000,000.00 May 18, 2007
Less Prepaid interest expenses (171,620.12) (455,300.73)
Net 9,828,379.88 19,544,699.27
14. LONG - TERM LOANS
Loans from 3 commercial banks consist of :
Credit line (Million Baht) Interest rate Baht
2007 2006 2007 2006
First bank 630 630 MLR-2 - MLR-0.25 313,463,250.00 476,920,100.00
Second bank 250 200 MLR-1.25 41,248,660.00 36,107,600.00
Third bank 520 220 MLR-1.25 - MLR-1.5, IRS 196,902,000.00 31,890,000.00

Less Current portion of long - term debts

Total

551,613,910.00
(259,411,410.00)

544,917,700.00
(263,867,790.00)

292,202,500.00

281,049,910.00

The loans agreement has several limitation that the Company must comply with the maintain of financial ratio.

14.1

Loans from 3 banks were gradually withdrawn due to their credit line. The principal and interest are monthly repaid

within 3 - 4 years from the loans withdrawal date. Loans from those 2 banks total credit line of Baht 770 million were

withdrawn in the amount of Baht 680 million and the remainning for withdrawal is Baht 90 million.

14.2

Loans from 3 banks are guaranteed by transferring the right on part of receivable under hire purchase agreement as

stated in note 4 and personal guarantee by the Company’s directors. Besides, loans from the 2™ bank are guaranteed

by fixed deposit as stated in note 10 and loans from the 3° bank are guaranteed by mortgaging land and construction

as stated in note 9.

15. LEGAL RESERVE

According to the Public Company Limited Act B.E. 2535, the Company has appropriated its reserve not less than 5%

of the annual net profit after deduction of deficit brought forward (if any) as legal reserve until the reserve reaches 10% of

authorized share capital. Such legal reserve is not available for dividend distribution.
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16. DIVIDEND PAID

According to the minutes of the shareholders’ general meeting no. 1/2006 held on April 4, 2006, the Company passed
the resolution to pay dividend from its net profit for six months ended December 31, 2005 to the shareholders for 410,000,000
shares at Baht 0.02 per share totalling Baht 8,200,000.00 which was paid on April 21, 2006.

According to the minutes of the Board of directors’ meeting no. 6/2006 held on November 10, 2006, the Company
passed the resolution to pay dividend from its net profit for nine months ended September 30, 2006 to the shareholders for
410,000,000 shares at Baht 0.02 per share totalling Baht 8,200,000.00 which was paid on December 8, 2006.

17. PROVIDENT FUND

The Company has jointed to be member of provident fund in accordance with the Provident Fund Act B.E. 2530.
Under the fund regulation, the employees have to contribute to the fund at the rate of 3% - 7% of their salaries and the
Company’s contribution at the rate of 3% - 7%. The benefits will be paid to the members upon the condition of length of

work on their retirement, death or resignation from the members.

For the year ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Company paid the contribution to the fund of Baht 937,930.00
and Baht 884,289.00, respectively.

18. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration is contributed to directors of the Company under the Public Company Act excluding salaries

and related fringe benefit paid to directors.

19. COMMITMENT

As at December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Company has contingent liabilities from bank’s issuance of letter of guarantee
for electricity usage of Baht 64,800.00.

20. FINANCIAL INFORMATION BY SEGMENT

The Company’s operation involve virtually a single credit providing business in the form of hire purchasing to ordinary
person and juristic person and operated in one geographical segment in domestic, hence, all of revenues, gain and assets

presented in the financial statements are related to the said business and geographical segment.

21. DISCLOSURES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
21.1 Accounting policy

The significant accounting policies and methods adopted the basis of recognition and measurement relating to each
class of financial assets and liabilities have been disclosed in notes to financial statements no. 3.

21.2 Credit risk

Credit risk derives from failure by counterparties to discharge their obligations. The Company has no material credit
risk and has policy to hedge credit risk by providing guarantor and down payment from each hire purchase receivable

and financial lease agreement receivable.
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21.3

21.4

22.

uSy¥n M:IuBaNWINIBEFEBY 91AR (UNIGU)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk may derive from changes in market interest rate. The Company has no interest rate risk because of
the Company has long-term loans with the fixed and floating interest rate.

Exchange rate risk

The Company have no foreign currency exchange rate risk since there are no receivables and payables transaction
denominated in foreign currencies.
Fair value of financial instruments

Financial assets shown in balance sheets consist of cash, deposit at bank, receivables and propertie foreclosed.

Financial liabilities shown in balance sheet consist of bank overdrafts and long-term loans.

The book value of financial assets and liabilities are close to fair value. In addition, the management believes that there

is no material risk financial instruments.

RECLASSIFICATION

The financial statements as at December 31, 2006 have been reclassified for comparison purpose with the financial

statements as at December 31, 2007.

23.

23.1
23.2
23.3

23.4
235

24.

OTHERS

Head office is located at 976/1, Soi Rama 9 Hospital, Rim Klong Samsean Road, Bangkapi, Huaykwoang, Bangkok.
Branch is located at 728/10, Sukhumvit Road, Bangplasoi, Mueng, Cholburi.

The Company engaged in business of credit services to personal and juristic person in the form of hire purchase and
sale with right of redemption agreement.

As at December 31, 2007, the Company has 106 staff (as at December 31, 2006, the number of staff was 91).

For the year ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Company has staff expenses of Baht 26.77 million and Baht
26.58 million, respectively.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS APPROVAL

These financial statements have been approved to be issued by the authorized person from ompany’s Board of

directors on February 25, 2008.
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